
Page 1 of 2 
Agenda – Regular Board Meeting –September 27, 2021 

CHILDREN’S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 27, 2021 ~ 3:30 PM 
AGENDA 

 
MISSION:  The Children’s Board invests in partnerships and quality programs to support the 

success of all children and families in Hillsborough County. 
 

CONFERENCE CALL  
 Conference Line: 1-813-515-8094 
 Access Code: 479 204 397# 

 
CALL TO ORDER                      A. Mayts 

 Attendance Verification                    K. Austin 
       Quorum Verification                     A. Mayts 

 Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance                A. Mayts 
      Swearing-in of Sarah Naumowich, Gubernatorial Appointee          A. Mayts 

   

PUBLIC COMMENT                     A. Mayts 

The Children’s Board of Hillsborough County welcomes comments from the public. 
Those who wish to address the Board may do so at this time.  Those addressing 

the Board should state their full name and affiliation for the official record.  
In the interest of time, we ask that one person be designated to speak on behalf of  
a constituency and that all comments are limited to three (3) minutes. 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DISCLOSURE               K. Parris 

 

PROVIDER PRESENTATIONS                  M. Negron 
• 2021 Social Enterprise Competition Update             J. Resnick 

Winner: Zoe’s Story 

 

ACTION ITEMS 
1. Approval; August 26, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Minutes               A. Mayts 
2. Approval; September 16, 2021 Preliminary TRIM Hearing Minutes      A. Mayts 

3. Approval: Release of Request for Proposals for Level (3) Leading Grant                                M. Negron 
for Art Programming 

4. Approval: Release of Request for Proposals for Level (3) Leading Grants for 2023            M. Negron 
5. Approval: Release of Request for Proposals for Level (2) Uniting Grants for 2023             M. Negron 
6. Approval; Contract with Hillsborough County BOCC Social Services Funds    R. Bacon 
7. Approval; Contract with Hillsborough County BOCC for Domestic Violence Funds  R. Bacon 
8. Approval; Contract with Eckerd Connects                                                                                    R. Bacon 
9. Approval; Executive Director Contract Extension                                                                           D. Adams 
 



Page 2 of 2 
Agenda – Regular Board Meeting –September 27, 2021 

 
REPORTS/PRESENTATIONS  
1. Executive Director Reports                        K. Parris 

A. Activities – August 26, 2021 – September 27, 2021  

B. Racial Equity – HOST 

C. Plant City – New Exhibit   

         

        2. Programs Reports                          M. Negron 

 

OLD/NEW BUSINESS 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Contract Signature Logs (ASO, Programs, Vendors) 
2. August 2021 Financial Statements 
3. Social Enterprise Competition Summary Report 
4. Preliminary Part II Results & Recommendations 
5. Good News! 
6. Outreach Events Calendar 
 

IMPORTANT DATES TO REMEMBER  
  

October 
 

Board Executive/Finance Committee     October 14, 2021         12:00 PM 
 
Regular Board Meeting        October 28, 2021         3:00 PM 
 
 

November 
 
Board Executive/Finance Committee     November 4, 2021        12:00 PM 
 
Regular Board Meeting        November 18, 2021        3:00 PM 
 

 



CBHC Regular Board Meeting 
August 26, 2021 - Page 1 of 5 

CHILDREN’S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  
August 26, 2021 ~ 3:00 PM 

MEETING MINUTES 

 
Subject Regular Board Meeting Date August 26, 2021 

Facilitator Andy Mayts, Chair Meeting Time 3:00 PM 

Location 

Conference Call: 1-813-515-8094 
Access Code: 479 204 397# 
1002 East Palm Ave. 
Tampa, FL 33605 

Actual Meeting 
Time 

3:02 PM – 3:40 PM 

Adjourned 3:40 PM 

Board Member 
Attendance 

Andy Mayts, Chair 

Robin DeLaVergne, Vice-Chair 
Frank Prado, Secretary/Treasurer  

Megan Proulx Dempsey 
Gwen Myers 
Lynn Gray  

Addison Davis - phone 
Katherine Essrig -- absent 
Ed Narain - absent 

Other 
Attendees 

Kelley Parris, Executive Director 

David Adams, CBHC Board Attorney 
Kristina Austin, Recorder 

Paula Scott, CBHC Staff 
 

Maria Negron, CBHC Staff 

Jan Houser, CBHC Staff 

Tonia Williams, CBHC Staff 

Jamie Robe, CBHC Staff 

Trish James, CBHC Staff 

 

SUMMARY 

No. Topic Highlights 

I CALL TO ORDER 

 
                             
 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

• A. Mayts called the meeting to order at 3:02 PM. 
 

• A. Mayts called for Board attendance verification.  
 

• A. Mayts led the Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

• A. Mayts called for Public Comment; there was none.  

II. PROVIDER 
PRESENTATION 

M. Negron introduced Anna Corman, Chief Program Officer for the Hillsborough 
Education Foundation. 
 
A. Corman provided information regarding the Children’s Board Tech Connect program 
that promotes learning at home. 

 
The program provides the following resources to program participants: 

• Home Visits including technology assessments and 1:1 coaching; 
• Concrete Supports through hotspots, a year’s worth of internet, and a Microsoft 

Surface; 
• Digital Literacy Training and Education; 
• Ongoing Support to provide continuing education and follow-up with the 

family. 
 

   



CBHC Regular Board Meeting 
August 26, 2021 - Page 2 of 5 

SUMMARY 

No. Topic Highlights 

III. ACTION ITEMS 

 1. 6-24-2021 Regular 
Board Meeting Minutes  

 
 

Motion (1) 

A. Mayts requested approval of the June 24, 2021 Regular Board Meeting minutes.  
 
 
Motion by Gwen Myers to approve the June 24, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 
minutes; second by Megan Dempsey. Motion carried (7-0). 

 2. Final FY 2021-2022 
Millage Rate 
                              
 
                              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                             Motion (2) 

T. Williams requested approval of the Final 2021–2022 Millage Rate.  The following 
details were reviewed:  
 
• The budgeted millage rate of .4589 is no change from the current FY 2020-2021 

millage rate. 
 

• It is estimated that the tax base will increase in FY 2021–2022 by 8.88%, for an 
additional $4.1 million in current tax revenue.  

o The estimated increase in the tax base from the State of Florida for the next 
four years are as follows: 

▪ FY 2022 -2023 – increase by 5% 
▪ FY 2023 - 2024 – increase by 6.1% 
▪ FY 2024 - 2025 – increase by 6.2% 
▪ FY 2025 - 2026 – increase by 6.1% 

 
• The estimated rolled-back rate is .4336. 

 
• .5000 millage rate is the maximum allowable millage rate under the Children’s 

Board statute. 
 
Motion by Lynn Gray to approve the Final FY 2021-2022 Millage Rate; second by 
Megan Dempsey. Motion carried (7-0).  

 3. Approval of Final FY 
2021-2022 Budget                   
                              
 
                             
 
 
 
                             Motion (3) 

T. Williams requested approval of the Final FY 2021–2022 Budget.  
 
• The FY 2021–2022 Budget was reviewed at the Executive / Finance Committee 

Budget Workshop. 
• A Preliminary TRIM Hearing will be held on September 16, 2021 at 5:01 PM and the 

Final TRIM Hearing will be held on September 27, 2021 at 5:01 PM. 
 

Motion by Gwen Myers to approve the Final FY 2021-2022 Budget; second by Frank 
Prado. Motion carried (7-0). 

 4. Approval to Release 
the Intent to Bid (ITB) 
for Janitorial Services 
 
                             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                             Motion (4) 

P. Scott requested approval to Release the ITB to find a single janitorial vendor to 
service for all CBHC owned and leased facilities beginning in early Fiscal Year 2022. 

 
Approval is for the release of a procurement solicitation for janitorial services for the 
properties located at: 

➢ 1002 E. Palm Ave., Tampa   
➢ 5892 E. Fowler Ave., Temple Terrace 
➢ 301 N. Palmer St, Plant City 
➢ 1271 Kingsway Road, Brandon 
➢ 116 W. Fletcher Ave., Tampa 
➢ 3030 College Ave., Ruskin 
➢ 7520 W. Waters Avenue, Tampa 

 
Motion by Robin DeLaVergne to approve the ITB for Janitorial Services; second by 
Frank Prado. Motion carried (7-0). 



CBHC Regular Board Meeting 
August 26, 2021 - Page 3 of 5 

SUMMARY 

No. Topic Highlights 

 5. Approval to Authorize 
Contract for Carpet 
Replacement 
                              
 
 
                             Motion (5) 

P. Scott requested approval to enter into a purchase agreement for office flooring removal 
and replacement using the State of Florida negotiated contract through Mohawk.   

• Total allocation would not exceed $128,000 for the Children’s Board headquarters 
 building located at 1002 E. Palm Ave., Tampa FL 33605 

Motion by Lynn Gray to authorize the Contract for Carpet Replacement; second by 
Gwen Myers. Motion carried (7-0). 

 6. Approval of FY 2021-
2022 Regular Board and 
Executive Finance 
Meeting Schedules 
                              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                             Motion (6) 

K. Parris requested approval of the FY 2021-2022 Regular Board and 
Executive/Finance Meeting schedules. The schedules will be published in The Tampa 
Bay Times as follows: 
 
Regular Board Meetings  
(3:00 PM, 4th Thursday of month unless noted) 

October 28, 2021  
November 18, 2021 (3rd Thursday due to Thanksgiving) 
No December 2021 Meeting 
January 27, 2022  
February 24, 2022 
March 24, 2022 
April 28, 2022 
May 26, 2022 
June 23, 2022 
No July 2022 Meeting 
August 25, 2022 
September 22, 2022 

 
Board Executive and Finance Committee Meetings  
(12:00 PM, 2nd Thursday of month unless noted) 
 

October 14, 2021  
November 4, 2021 (1st Thursday due to Thanksgiving)  
No December 2021 Meeting 
January 13, 2022 
February 10, 2022 
March 10, 2022 
April 14, 2022 
May 12, 2022 
June 9, 2022 
No July 2022 Meeting 
August 25, 2022 (Budget Workshop 1:00 p.m.) 
September 8, 2022 
 

Motion by Megan Dempsey to approve the FY 2021-2022 Regular Board and 
Executive Finance Meeting Schedules. Second by Gwen Myers. Motion carried (7-0). 

 7. Approval to Release 
the Request for Proposal 
(RFP) for a Level (1) 
Investment Grant 
 
 
                              
 

• M. Negron requested approval to release a RFP in September 2021 for a Level (1) 
Investment Grant. 

•  
• Total allocation not to exceed $1,000,000; 
• Funding would span from January 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022; 
• Grant’s focus area of Ready to Learn and Succeed prepares children entering       
    Kindergarten or provides out of school time services for students through 3rd grade. 

 



CBHC Regular Board Meeting 
August 26, 2021 - Page 4 of 5 

SUMMARY 

No. Topic Highlights 

 
      ACTION ITEMS CONT.       

                               
 
                             Motion (7) 

• Motion by Lynn Gray to approve the Release of an RFP for a Level (1) Investment 
Grant supporting children entering Kindergarten; second by Frank Prado. Motion 
carried (7-0). 

 8. Approval to Release 
the Request for Proposal 
(RFP) for Level (2) 
Investment Grant 
                              
 
 
 
 
 
               
                           
                             Motion (8) 

• M. Negron requested approval to release a RFP in September 2021 for a Level (2) 
Investment Grant. 

•  
• Total Allocation not to exceed $600,000; 
• Funding would span February 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022;  
• Focus area of Children are Healthy and Safe strengthens the foundation of child 
    and family well-being especially as it relates to access to prenatal care, health care 
    resources, and women’s wellness.  
 

Motion by Gwen Myers to approve the Release of an RFP for a Level (2) Investment 
Grant for Children that are Healthy and Safe; second by Megan Dempsey. Motion 
carried (7-0). 

 9. Approval to Release 
Request for Proposal 
(RFP) for Level (2) 
Uniting Grant 
                              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                             Motion (9) 

• M. Negron requested approval the Release of a RFP in September 2021 for a Level (2) 
Uniting Grant. 

•  
• Total Allocation not to exceed $450,000; 
• Funding would span January 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022; 
• Intent is to fund up to two contracts; 
• Focus area would expand services offered at the Children’s Board Family Resource 
    Centers.  

 
Motion by Robin DeLaVergne to approve the Release of an RFP for a Level (2) 
Uniting Grant to expand services at CBHC Family Resource Centers; second by Lynn 
Gray. Motion carried (7-0). 

IV. REPORTS  

 1. Executive Director   
Reports 

K. Parris reported attending (56) significant meetings between June 25, 2021–August 
25, 2021. 
 
The following updates were provided by K. Parris regarding the Racial Equity Project:  

• K. Parris and Genet Stewart have toured the zip codes (33603, 33610, and 
33619) to familiarize themselves with the selected areas;  

• A need for more green space was identified in zip code 33610 at the 22nd street 
park location; 

• K. Parris has reached out to the City of Tampa Parks & Recreation Department 
concerning the park. This location is already on the City’s radar. 

• A service center is projected for zip code 33610; 
• The Commission on the Status of Women has expressed an interest in working 

with female residents from the three identified zip codes; 
• After meeting with CareerSource on the project, they have also expressed an 

interest in being involved in the project. 

 
2. Programs Reports M. Negron provided brief updates on funding releases and the Part (I) Results and 

Recommendations for FY 2021.  



CBHC Regular Board Meeting 
August 26, 2021 - Page 5 of 5 

SUMMARY 

No. Topic Highlights 

 
3. Human Resources 
Report 

J. Houser introduced the following new employees to the Board: 
• Lisa Young, Accounts payable Coordinator; 
• Tre’ Hansen, Contract Management Specialist. 

 
4. FY 2021 Quarter 3 
Strategic Plan Report 

T. James presented the Quarter-3 FY 2021 Strategic Plan Report. 

V. ADJOURNMENT The meeting adjourned at 3:34 PM 

MOTIONS 

1. Motion by Gwen Myers to approve the June 24, 2021 Regular Board Meeting minutes; second by Megan 
Dempsey. Motion carried (7-0). 

2. Motion by Lynn Gray to approve the Final FY 2021-2022 Millage Rate; second by Megan Dempsey. Motion 
carried (7-0). 

3. Motion by Gwen Myers to approve the Final FY 2021-2022 Budget; second by Frank Prado. Motion carried (7-0). 

4. Motion by Robin DeLaVergne to approve the ITB for Janitorial Services; second by Frank Prado. Motion carried 
(7-0). 

5. Motion by Lynn Gray to authorize the Contract for Carpet Replacement; second by Gwen Myers. Motion carried 
(7-0). 

6. Motion by Megan Dempsey to approve the FY 2021-2022 Regular Board and Executive Finance Meeting 
Schedules; second by Gwen Myers. Motion carried (7-0). 

7. Motion by Lynn Gray to approve the Release of an RFP for a Level (1) Investment Grant supporting children 
entering Kindergarten; second by Frank Prado. Motion carried (7-0). 

8. Motion by Gwen Myers to approve the Release of an RFP for a Level (2) Investment Grant for Children that are 
Healthy and Safe; second by Megan Dempsey. Motion carried (7-0). 

9. Motion by Robin DeLaVergne to approve the Release of an RFP for a Level (2) Uniting Grant to expand services 
at CBHC Family Resource Centers; second by Lynn Gray. Motion carried (7-0). 

 
 
READ AND APPROVED BY: 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
ANDREW MAYTS 
BOARD CHAIR 



CBHC Preliminary Public Hearing (TRIM) 
September 16, 2021 - Page 1 of 2 

CHILDREN’S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 
PRELIMINARY PUBLIC HEARING (TRIM) 

SEPTEMBER 16, 2021 AT 5:01 P.M. 
 
  

Subject Preliminary Public Hearing (TRIM) Date September 16, 2021 

Facilitator Andy Mayts, Chair 
Meeting 
Time 

5:03 PM to 5:10 PM 

Location 

Children’s Board of Hillsborough County 
1002 East Palm Avenue 
Tampa, Florida 33605 
 

Adjourned 
The meeting adjourned at 5:10 
PM 

Board Member 
Attendees 

Andy Mayts, Chair 

Robin DeLaVergne, Vice Chair 

Frank Prado, Secretary/Treasurer 

Megan Proulx Dempsey 
Katherine Essrig 
Ed Narain 

Addison Davis 
Gwen Myer 
 

Other Attendees 
Kelley Parris, Executive Director 

David Adams., Board Attorney 
Kristina Austin, Recorder 

Trish James 
Paula Scott 
Jan Houser 

Tonia Williams 
Jamie Robe 
Genet Stewart 

 

SUMMARY 

No. Topic Highlights 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Quorum Verification 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 

Andy Mayts, Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:01 PM. 
 
A quorum was established with 8 Board members present. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Andy Mayts, Chair.  

II. BOARD DISCUSSION Mr. Mayts stated an operating millage rate of .4589 has been recommended, which 

is greater than the rolled-back rate of .4336 mills by 5.83%.  This increase over the 

rolled-back rate is necessary in order to ensure Hillsborough County children (1) 

are healthy and safe, (2) are developmentally on track, (3) are ready to learn and 

succeed, and (4) have family support.  In order to accomplish those outcomes in FY 

2021 – 2022, the recommended budget includes $9,070,000 of new unallocated 

program funding.  Without an increase over the rolled-back millage rate, some of 

these new funding opportunities would not be possible, and the children of 

Hillsborough County would not be well served. 

 

III. PRESENTATION OF 
RESOLUTIONS 

A. Mayts requested D. Adams to verbally review the resolutions. 
 
D. Adams stated for the record: 
 
Two resolutions are to be considered; one to adopt the millage rate and the other to 
adopt the budget, both by separate votes.  
 
D. Adams read Resolution Number 21/22-01; Resolution Adopting Tentative 
Millage Rate. 
 
D. Adams read Resolution Number 21/22-02; Resolution Adopting Tentative 
Budget. 
 
 



CBHC Preliminary Public Hearing (TRIM) 
September 16, 2021 - Page 2 of 2 

SUMMARY 

No. Topic Highlights 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT A. Mayts opened the floor for Public Comment. 
 
No one offered Public Comment. 

V. BOARD VOTE 
 
       Motion A (Millage Rate)  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Motion B (Budget) 
 

 

D. Adams advised that the Motion (A) on the Agenda is in order.   
 

A.  IT IS MOVED THAT THE CHILDREN'S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, IN          

ORDER TO PROVIDE SERVICES TO OR ON BEHALF OF CHILDREN,  ADOPT A 

TENTATIVE MILLAGE RATE OF .4589  WHICH IS GREATER THAN THE ROLLED-

BACK RATE OF .4336 MILLS BY 5.83% AND ADOPT THE ATTACHED MILLAGE 

RATE RESOLUTION NUMBER 21/22-01. 

 
D. Adams advised that the Motion (B) on the Agenda is in order.   
 
B.  IT IS MOVED THAT THE CHILDREN'S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, IN 

ORDER TO PROVIDE SERVICES TO OR ON BEHALF OF CHILDREN ADOPT A 

TENTATIVE BUDGET OF $56,786,342 AND ADOPT THE ATTACHED BUDGET 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 21/22-02. 

 Motion A 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Motion B 

Motion by Megan Proulx Dempsey that the Children’s Board of Hillsborough 
County, in order to provide services to or on behalf of children, adopt a tentative 
millage rate of .4589 which is greater than the rolled-back rate of .4336 mills by 
5.83% and adopt the attached millage rate resolution number 21/22-01; 
second by Ed Narain. No discussion; motion carried (7-0) with an Abstention by 
Katherine Essrig. 
 
Motion by Ed Narain that the Children’s Board of Hillsborough County, in order 
to provide services to or on behalf of children adopt a tentative budget of 
$56,786,342 and adopt the attached budget resolution number 21/22-02; 
second by Gwen Myers. No discussion; motion carried by unanimous vote (8-0). 

VI. ADJOURNMENT No further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:10 PM. 

 
 

MOTIONS 

A. Motion by Megan Proulx Dempsey that the Children’s Board of Hillsborough County, in order to provide 
services to or on behalf of children, adopt a tentative millage rate of .4589 which is greater than the rolled-
back rate of .4336 mills by 5.83% and adopt the attached millage rate resolution number 21/22-01; second by 
Ed Narain. No discussion; motion carried (7-0) with an Abstention by Katherine Essrig. 
 

B. Motion by Ed Narain that the Children’s Board of Hillsborough County, in order to provide services to or on 
behalf of children adopt a tentative budget of $56,786342 and adopt the attached budget resolution number 
21/22-02; second by Gwen Myers. No discussion; motion carried by unanimous vote (8-0). 
 

 
READ AND APPROVED BY: 
 
________________________________________ 
Andy Mayts, Chair 



  ACTION ITEM NO. 3 

Approval of Request for Proposals for Level (3) Leading Grant 

Action Item 3 - Page 1 of 1 

 
 
Initiator: Maria Negrón, Director of Programs 
 
Action: Approval of Request for Proposals for Level (3) Leading Grant 
 
Date: Regular Board Meeting, September 27, 2021 

 
 
Recommended Actions 
 
1. Recommend release in October 2021 for a Level (3) Leading Grant with a total allocation 

up to $125,000 to support art programming for children from  to  February 1, 2022 
through September 30, 2022.  
 

Background 
 

While Children’s Board funds programs that embed art in their service delivery activities, a 

contract specific for art programming has not been funded since FY 2018-2019. 



  ACTION ITEM NO. 4 

Approval of Request for Proposals for Level (3) Leading Grants for 2023 

Action Item 4- Page 1 of 1 

 
 
Initiator: Maria Negrón, Director of Programs 
 
Action: Approval of Request for Proposals for Level (3) Leading Grants for 2023 
 
Date: Regular Board Meeting, September 27, 2021 

 
 
Recommended Actions 
 
1. Recommend release in January 2022 for a Level (3) Leading Grants with a total allocation 

up to $1,000,000 to support children and their families from October 1, 2022 through 
September 30, 2023.  
 

Background 
 

• Most current Leading Grants will end according to the grant period on September 

30, 2022 for a total of $213,673. 

• This release will add $786,327 in available funds for Leading Grants. 
• Leading Grant platform amount has been updated to awards between $75,000 and 

$150,000. 

• A contract awarded to organizations that primarily provides neighborhood-based 
services or serves a specific region(s) that support at least one of four focus areas to 
meet a need or targets underserved populations.  

• In addition, Leading Grants are contractually obligated to meet at least three (3) 
agreed upon measurable outcomes annually. 



  ACTION ITEM NO. 5 

Approval of Request for Proposals for Level (2) Uniting Grants for 2023 

Action Item 5 - Page 1 of 1 

 
 
Initiator: Maria Negrón, Director of Programs 
 
Action: Approval of Request for Proposals for Level (2) Uniting Grants for 2023 
 
Date: Regular Board Meeting, September 27, 2021 

 
 
Recommended Actions 
 
1. Recommend release in November 2021 for a Level (2) Uniting Grants with a total allocation 

up to $15,000,000 to support children and their families from October 1, 2022 through 
September 30, 2023.  
 

Background 
 

• Most current Uniting Grants will end according to the grant period on September 30, 

2022 for a total of $10,584,284. 

• This release will add $4,415,716 in available funds for Uniting Grants 

• Uniting and Investment Grant platforms amounts may be updated as a result of this 

release. 

• A contract awarded to an organization that primarily serves a geographic area or 
offers accessible services countywide with a collaborative approach to service 
delivery that supports one or more focus areas.   

• In addition, Uniting Grants are contractually obligated to meet four (4) to six (6) 
agreed upon measurable outcomes annually.  
 

 



  ACTION ITEM NO. 6   

Approval of Contract with Hillsborough County BOCC 

Action Item – 6 
 

Initiator:  Rebecca Bacon, Director of the ASO 
 
Action:  Approval of Contract with Hillsborough County BOCC Social Services Funds 
 
Date:   Regular Board Meeting, September 27, 2021 
 
Recommended Action 
 

• To Approve a contract in the amount of $300,000 for the period of October 1, 2021 to 
September 30, 2022 with Hillsborough County BOCC to administer Social Services funds 
through the Administrative Services Organization. 

 
Background 
   

• The Children’s Board ASO began managing Hillsborough County Social Services funding as a 
pilot in Fiscal Year 2017 -2018.   

• A new contract was initiated in Fiscal Year 2019 with four renewals, of which this is the 
third renewal.  

• The goal is to enhance services to vulnerable families throughout Hillsborough County who 
are committed to becoming self-sufficient.   

• The funds support the wraparound process and development of a family support plans in 
existing case management programs.   

• Flexible funds contributed to the ASO are allocated to more than twenty (20) case 
management programs to provide housing supports and homeless prevention services.   

• The ASO manages the flexible funds and provides accounts payable services, detailed 
financial reporting, provider credentialing and network management, training and technical 
assistance, quality assurance, and monitoring. 

• ASO programs have been able to serve additional participants and expand the reach of their 
programs, while reducing duplication of services.  Over 275 families have been served this 
fiscal year.  

• The Children’s Board has been able to reduce expenditures for housing supports as 
programs have been able to use those Children’s Board funds to meet additional service 
needs for enrolled families. 

 
Attachment 
 
A. Contract Renewal 





ASO Hillsborough County BOCC Social Services Funds - Utilization Update

Project Overview: Hillsborough County Social Services reserved $300,000 in funding for housing supports to be administered by the 

Children’s Board ASO through an interlocal agreement. The Children’s Board established agreements with select ASO partner agencies to 

provide access to these funds. The goal is to enhance services to vulnerable families throughout Hillsborough County who are committed 

to becoming self-sufficient. The funds support the wraparound process and development of a family support plans in existing ASO case 

management programs. 

Utilization by Program 

Program 
Allocation Amount Families Served 

October - July 

Projected 

Families Served 

Bridge to Permanent Housing (Mary & Martha House) $0 0 0 

E.A.C.H. One Initiative [Positive Spin, Inc.] $15,000 11 14 

Emergency Shelter [The Spring of Tampa Bay, Inc.] $5,000 3 5 

Family Safety from Domestic Violence [The Spring of Tampa Bay] $68,000 71 85 

Family Support and Resource Center [Manifestations Worldwide, Inc.]  $5,000 1 2 

First Hug [Metropolitan Ministries] $15,000 10 13 

Hand Up Assistance Program [Family Promise of Greater Brandon, Inc.] $2,000 2 3 

Healthy Families - Site 1 [Children's Home Network] $5,000 3 5 

Healthy Families - Site 2 [Children's Home Network] $5,000 1 2 

Healthy Families - Site 3 [Champions for Children] $10,000 5 7 

Healthy Families - Site 5 [Champions for Children] $10,000 5 7 

Healthy Families - Site 6 [Children's Home Network] $15,000 13 18 

Healthy Families - Site 9 [ Children's Home Network] $10,000 4 5 

Healthy Start [Success 4 Kids & Families] $10,000 7 9 

Kinship Care [Family Enrichment Center] $10,000 20 25 

Kinship Care [Children's Home Network] $13,000 12 15 

La RED [Hispanic Services Council] $20,000 14 17 

School Social Work [Hillsborough County Public Schools] $32,000 24 27 

Sin-Cera, Inc. Support Services [Sin-Cera, Inc.] $30,000 27 33 

Steps for Success [University Area CDC] $15,000 11 16 

Successful Parents [Success 4 Kids & Families] $5,000 1 2 

$300,000 245 310 

Utilization by Service 

Service Type 

Funds 

Budgeted October - July 

Estimated Funds Budgeted 
August - September 

Total Projected Funds Budgeted 
for the Period 

Rental Assistance $152,108 $36,700 $188,808 

Rental Assistance - First Month $23,197 $6,050 $29,247 

Security Deposit $60,361 $10,003 $70,364 

Water $10,581 $1,000 $11,581 
$246,247 $53,753 $300,000 

Notable Accomplishments 

All Children’s Board operations were in full effect during COVID-19. There was no interruption of service and CDC guidance 
was followed. 

August 2021 Newsletter 

Grand Opening of the Children's Board Family Resource Centers Plant City! https://fb.watch/7qdSZyzmR0/ 

https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=https%3A%2F%2Fconta.cc%2F2Vf7TZh%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0_6AdBzYVuHRoetIOi7uuQklejRGka1WrgGF74w6o0R9AqSH4bMDq7KWg&h=AT0KA-5gma0MJtPiCEuGkdaWhV8YGw-wT5T4Y_m-sJnrxBf20QQ-gLkEhiN-he2ucVIw6aCD4b5oVpXco8rqHBUnXmYeYRED7gbd4zIbzCcjX5QWAu78k-f4n3M98YDo8K2r&__tn__=-UK-R&c%5b0%5d=AT1BUNSZqxSgXddUzIwhHGr12EUiKLGt_nTUPJwvN8JdjqDi2TALgOHsOTYdMn_tsVYwhX6y5sZcydmNPw35acbpj0Ss6BKaIGiuMWFyVNS8nVdJGSuKQ8fpk7Ii41zo6IuyDhBWJrnOQxbN4C4qoBvisV2KtwZ3rSgWSLPyd2JDKkwf
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=https%3A%2F%2Fconta.cc%2F2Vf7TZh%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0_6AdBzYVuHRoetIOi7uuQklejRGka1WrgGF74w6o0R9AqSH4bMDq7KWg&h=AT0KA-5gma0MJtPiCEuGkdaWhV8YGw-wT5T4Y_m-sJnrxBf20QQ-gLkEhiN-he2ucVIw6aCD4b5oVpXco8rqHBUnXmYeYRED7gbd4zIbzCcjX5QWAu78k-f4n3M98YDo8K2r&__tn__=-UK-R&c%5b0%5d=AT1BUNSZqxSgXddUzIwhHGr12EUiKLGt_nTUPJwvN8JdjqDi2TALgOHsOTYdMn_tsVYwhX6y5sZcydmNPw35acbpj0Ss6BKaIGiuMWFyVNS8nVdJGSuKQ8fpk7Ii41zo6IuyDhBWJrnOQxbN4C4qoBvisV2KtwZ3rSgWSLPyd2JDKkwf
https://www.facebook.com/CBFamilyResourceCenters/?__cft__%5b0%5d=AZVWIU-fDzWoBIZ69jsmZqQDXrUi_aLe04cXPemtInbGH6FcCVd3LqGetbZFF1oVKE7h8i3VIFg2b4_qQU36WZ2TIv3AufdoMR1XiVt0xezN-vXJrIJpmu5B3Kq3-qmzasdTzQfBTQr4EmOEQizMOcfftEnrkhVK_1VIqLYjIBk4Ng&__tn__=kK-R
https://www.facebook.com/CBFamilyResourceCenters/?__cft__%5b0%5d=AZVWIU-fDzWoBIZ69jsmZqQDXrUi_aLe04cXPemtInbGH6FcCVd3LqGetbZFF1oVKE7h8i3VIFg2b4_qQU36WZ2TIv3AufdoMR1XiVt0xezN-vXJrIJpmu5B3Kq3-qmzasdTzQfBTQr4EmOEQizMOcfftEnrkhVK_1VIqLYjIBk4Ng&__tn__=kK-R
https://fb.watch/7qdSZyzmR0/
https://fb.watch/7qdSZyzmR0/


  

CHILDREN’S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY 
 

November 13, 2020 

Authored by: Rebecca Bacon, Director of the ASO 

 

Administrative Services Organization 
 

Hillsborough County Board of County Commissioners Social Services Funding 

Year End Report – 2020 

 

ASO IS THE BRIDGE OVER TROUBLED WATERS FOR 

THE CLIENTS WE SERVE. 

- QUOTE FROM ASO CASE MANAGER SURVEY 



 

 1 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

 |
 1

1
/1

3
/2

0
2

0
 

Administrative Services Organization 

Hillsborough County Board of County Commissioners Social Services Funding 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES ORGANIZATION (ASO) OVERVIEW 

The Administrative Services Organization (ASO) is a project created and operated by the Children’s 

Board of Hillsborough County to manage a dedicated pool of flexible funds.  Implemented in 2003 to 

support family directed care, the ASO promotes a wraparound approach in which families identify their 

strengths, needs, goals and service providers through a family support plan.  As a payment of last resort, 

flexible funds managed by the ASO can be used to provide supports and services with qualified 

community providers.  ASO flexible funds assist a variety of target populations including but not limited 

to pregnant women, young children, children at risk of social-emotional delays, families served by the 

child welfare system, victims of domestic violence, and families facing homelessness. 

Trained case managers from participating agencies work with families to develop individualized family 

support plans and select from a wide range of services and supports for the children and their families.  

Families can prioritize the most critical services and select a provider of their choosing.  Currently, 

eighty-five (85) different service types are available from a fully credentialed provider network that 

includes a wide variety of agencies, vendors, individuals, local businesses, and faith-based organizations. 

The Children’s Board ASO offers funds management, accounts payable services, detailed financial 

reporting including reports to enrolled families, provider credentialing and network management, and 

quality assurance.  All processes are managed through a custom web-application which increases 

efficiency and accountability and offers real-time data to participating programs and funders. 

 

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (BOCC) SOCIAL SERVICES FUNDS 

In November 2017, the Hillsborough County BOCC approved an allocation of $300,000 to fund housing 

supports to be administered by the Children’s Board ASO through an interlocal agreement.  After a 

successful first year, a new agreement was established to provide $300,000 for Fiscal Year 2019 and it 

was renewed again for Fiscal Year 2020.  The Children’s Board then renewed the agreements with select 

ASO partner agencies to provide access to these funds.  The goal of the funding is to enhance services to 

vulnerable families throughout Hillsborough County who are committed to becoming self-sufficient.  

The funds support the wraparound process and development of family support plans in existing case 

management programs.   

Hillsborough County BOCC Social Services funds were made available for the following ASO services 

only:  rental assistance for families in crisis, first month’s rent and security deposit, and water payments 

to restore service, avoid service disruption, or pay a deposit.  An inspection by Code Enforcement was 

required for all rental properties and the Children’s Board coordinated the inspection process through 

Social Services.  

 

 



 2 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

 |
 1

1
/1

3
/2

0
2

0
 

CASE MANAGEMENT PARTNERS 

Hillsborough County BOCC Social Services funds were made available to twenty-one (21) case 

management programs that were also accessing Children’s Board funds through the ASO.  All case 

managers participated in a required training in the ASO model prior to being given system access.  

Additionally, a special training on this funding source was provided in November 2019.   Programs were 

awarded initial allocations and funds were distributed from the reserve to address needs at the program 

level throughout the year.  The programs and their utilization of ASO funds are detailed below.   

Program 
Allocation 
Amount 

Budgeted Actuals 

E.A.C.H. One Initiative [Positive Spin, Inc.] $31,627 $31,627 $31,627 

Emergency Shelter [The Spring of Tampa Bay, Inc.] $6,687 $6,687 $6,687 

Families Matter [Greater Palm River, CDC dba Palm River Family 
Services] 

$3,834 $3,834 $3,834 

Family Safety from Domestic Violence [The Spring of Tampa Bay] $29,589 $29,589 $29,589 

Family Support and Resource Center [Manifestations Worldwide, Inc.] $1,557 $1,557 $1,557 

First Hug [Metropolitan Ministries] $46,763 $45,813 $45,813 

Hand Up Assistance Program [Family Promise of Greater Brandon, Inc.] $2,845 $2,845 $2,845 

Healthy Families - Site 1 [Children's Home Network] $9,438 $9,438 $9,438 

Healthy Families - Site 2 [Children's Home Network] $4,008 $4,008 $4,008 

Healthy Families - Site 3 [Champions for Children] $8,814 $8,814 $8,814 

Healthy Families - Site 5 [Champions for Children] $10,938 $10,938 $10,938 

Healthy Families - Site 6 [Children's Home Network] $6,164 $6,164 $6,164 

Healthy Families - Site 9 [ Children's Home Network] $3,271 $3,271 $3,271 

Healthy Start [Success 4 Kids & Families] $1,820 $1,820 $1,820 

Kinship Care [Family Enrichment Center] $9,932 $9,932 $9,932 

Kinship Care [Children's Home Network] $5,995 $5,995 $5,995 

La RED [Hispanic Services Council] $8,833 $8,833 $8,833 

School Social Work [Hillsborough County Public Schools] $45,777 $44,562 $44,562 

Sin-Cera, Inc. Support Services [Sin-Cera, Inc.] $27,098 $27,098 $27,098 

Steps for Success [University Area CDC] $14,277 $14,277 $14,277 

Successful Parents [Success 4 Kids & Families] $665 $665 $665 

  $279,931  $277,765  $277,765  

 

PARTICIPANTS SERVED 

There were 304 participants enrolled in the ASO by case managers to access Hillsborough County BOCC 

Social Services funds.  Demographic highlights for enrolled participants, as reported by case managers, 

are as follows: 

• GENDER → 56% were female and 44% male.  

• RACE → 63% were Black or African American, 31% were White, 4% were Two or More Races and the 
remainder were Asian or Not Available. 



 

 3 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

 |
 1

1
/1

3
/2

0
2

0
 

• ETHNICITY →  68% were Not Hispanic or Latino, 26% were Hispanic or Latino, and the remainder 
were Not Available.  

• MEDICAID ENROLLED → 71% were reported to be enrolled in Medicaid, 6% not enrolled in 
Medicaid, and 23% unknown. 
 

Note that most participants enrolled in ASO represent a child in the family, so the demographics are that 

of the child.  

The breakdown of enrollment by program is shown in the table below.  Utilization of ASO funds by 

program varies based on the population served by that program, the needs presented during the family 

support planning process, and other resources available to meet those needs.  

Program 
Families 
Served 

E.A.C.H. One Initiative [Positive Spin, Inc.] 26 

Emergency Shelter [The Spring of Tampa Bay, Inc.] 8 

Families Matter [Greater Palm River, CDC dba Palm River Family 
Services] 

7 

Family Safety from Domestic Violence [The Spring of Tampa Bay] 39 

Family Support and Resource Center [Manifestations Worldwide, Inc.] 2 

First Hug [Metropolitan Ministries] 43 

Hand Up Assistance Program [Family Promise of Greater Brandon, Inc.] 3 

Healthy Families - Site 1 [Children's Home Network] 10 

Healthy Families - Site 2 [Children's Home Network] 3 

Healthy Families - Site 3 [Champions for Children] 7 

Healthy Families - Site 5 [Champions for Children] 10 

Healthy Families - Site 6 [Children's Home Network] 7 

Healthy Families - Site 9 [ Children's Home Network] 5 

Healthy Start [Success 4 Kids & Families] 2 

Kinship Care [Family Enrichment Center] 29 

Kinship Care [Children's Home Network] 8 

La RED [Hispanic Services Council] 10 

School Social Work [Hillsborough County Public Schools] 44 

Sin-Cera, Inc. Support Services [Sin-Cera, Inc.] 23 

Steps for Success [University Area CDC] 17 

Successful Parents [Success 4 Kids & Families] 1 

 304 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 4 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

 |
 1

1
/1

3
/2

0
2

0
 

SERVICES PURCHASED 
 
The table below summarizes the number of payments by service type, as well as the total dollar amount 

by service, for this funding source.   There was a decrease in the use of these funds for relocation 

services in Fiscal Year 2020, likely related to the moratorium on evictions that was in place due to 

COVID-19.  

 
 

The chart below illustrates the distribution of payments by service type using Hillsborough County BOCC 

Social Services funds. 

 

 

PROVIDERS AND VENDORS 

 

As needs are identified and the eligibility to use ASO funds is determined, providers and vendors are 

selected by families with the assistance of their case manager.  The ASO offers a large, diverse provider 

network from which families may choose, as well as the flexibility to add new providers and vendors 

based on the needs of the children and families enrolled.  The ASO database includes more than 4,500 

active vendors, over 1,300 of which are credentialed service providers.  

Service Type

Funds 

Budgeted

Total 

Budgets

Rental Assistance $148,868 159

Rental Assistance - First Month $27,699 37

Security Deposit $88,325 87

Water $12,874 52

$277,765 335

Utilization by Service

Rental Assistance
53%

Rental Assistance 
- First Month

10%

Security Deposit 
32%

Water
5%

ASO Expenditures by Service Type 



 

 5 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

 |
 1

1
/1

3
/2

0
2

0
 

The ASO issued 335 payments to 185 unduplicated providers and vendors with Hillsborough County 

BOCC Social Services funds.  The number of providers paid by service type were as follows: 

 

Note that some providers were paid for more than one service. 

 
MONITORING 
 
The Children’s Board conducts ASO monitoring visits of all programs that access Children’s Board and 

Hillsborough County BOCC ASO funds.  The ASO monitoring visit includes an overall assessment of 

adherence to ASO guidelines as well as a random sample record review of ASO participants.  The client 

record review is conducted to ensure that services purchased by the ASO directly relate to goals that are 

documented in the family support plans, and that there is evidence that the participants received the 

services.    

Most programs utilizing County BOCC Social Services funds performed well in the monitoring process.  

More than half of the programs received a 100% score for the number of services found on family 

support plans, and all but one program achieved a score of 80% or higher.  It is important to note that 

thirty-seven (37) of the forty (40) County Social Services-funded budgets reviewed in monitoring were 

found in family support plans, for a funding source-specific score of 93%.  Furthermore, all County 

Social Services funded budgets were fully substantiated by proper back-up documentation.  The table on 

the following page summarizes the monitoring results of participating programs. 

Service Type # of Providers Paid

Rental Assistance 133

Rental Assistance - First Month 30

Security Deposit 64

Water 3

Providers Utilized



 6 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

 |
 1

1
/1

3
/2

0
2

0
 

 
 
 
QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
 

Family surveys were administered by mail for most participating programs in September.  The Spring of 

Tampa Bay administered surveys directly to their participants through their case managers throughout 

the year.  Thirty-six (36) participants served by the County BOCC Social Services funds responded to the 

family survey.  Based on the number of participants served by this funding (304), surveys were received 

from twelve percent (12%). 

The summary of responses for ASO participants who returned surveys is as follows:   

• 100% of participants agreed or somewhat agreed that the ASO has helped their family meet 

their goals.  

• 100% of participants agreed or somewhat agreed that they have been given choices about 

which services their family gets. 

• 97% of participants agreed or somewhat agreed that they have been given choices about who 

provides services for their families.   

• 94% of participants reported that they received the service that they needed the most. 

o Eighteen (18) of the families reported that the services they needed the most were rental 

assistance, security deposits, or help with utilities.  

• 92% of participants reported that they received the service in a timely manner.  

Program Name Agency ASO Monitoring 

Completed

Services 

in FSP?

Funds Returned 

by Program

E.A.C.H. One Initiative Positive Spin, Inc. 03/04/2020 100% -$                   

Emergency Shelter The Spring of Tampa Bay, Inc. 08/13/2020 95% 10.50$               

Families Matter
Greater Palm River, CDC dba Palm 

River Family Services

03/12/2020 100% -$                   

Family Safety from Domestic 

Violence
The Spring of Tampa Bay, Inc.

07/30/2020 93% -$                   

Family Support and Resource 

Center
Manifestations Worldwide, Inc.

08/04/2020 45% -$                   

First Hug Metropolitan Ministries 03/11/2020 97% -$                   

Hand-Up Assistance Program
Family Promise of Hillsborough 

County

09/11/2020 82% -$                   

Healthy Families - Site 1, 2, 6 & 9 The Children's Home 05/28/2020 100% -$                   

Healthy Families - Sites 3 and 5 Champions for Children 05/28/2020 100% -$                   

Healthy Start Success 4 Kids & Families 08/21/2020 100% -$                   

Kinship Care Family Enrichment Center 03/03/2020 100% -$                   

Kinship Care The Children's Home 03/05/2020 100% -$                   

La RED Hispanic Services Council 06/04/2020 100% -$                   

School Social Work Hillsborough County Public Schools 09/17/2020 100% 0.96$                 

Sin-Cera, Inc. Support Services Sin-Cera, Inc. 07/16/2020 96% -$                   

Steps for Success University Area CDC 08/27/2020 100% -$                   

Successful Parents Success 4 Kids & Families 08/21/2020 100% -$                   



 

 7 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

 |
 1

1
/1

3
/2

0
2

0
 

When asked what they liked best about the ASO and services provided, many participants responded 

with comments about the helpfulness of their case manager, the ability to have their needs met and the 

timeliness of the assistance.  A few examples of their comments are as follows: 

• “They help me and my girls get in a home to be a family.” 

• “How patient and understanding my case manager is.” 

• “They were able to help me with housing fast.” 

• “The promptness with which the assistance is provided.” 

Surveys were also administered to ASO case managers through a web-based survey in September.  

Eighty (80) of the 128 case managers accessing Hillsborough County BOCC Social Services funds 

responded to the survey, for a sixty-three percent (63%) response rate.  Highlights from their responses 

are as follows: 

• 93% were almost always or often satisfied with the ease of obtaining ASO services. 

• 86% were almost always or often satisfied with the process for requesting new providers.  

• 96% were almost always or often satisfied with the timeliness of ASO payments.   

• 96% were almost always or often satisfied with the customer service received from the ASO. 

• 86% agreed that they were more confident in their ability to meet families’ needs.    

When asked what impact the ASO has on families, the following responses were provided: 

• “ASO has made a huge difference with families as it sometimes prevents them from being 

homeless, from not having water, electricity or food in their house or beds for babies to sleep in.” 

• “ASO gives our families the opportunity to thrive and feel self-sufficient.” 

• “I have families who did not lose their home because of the help they received.” 

• “When ASO supports the families with basic living necessities such as housing and utilities, it 

allows the families to work on improving the lives of their children.” 

• “As a case manager I have noticed that sometimes we are the only hope for the families we 

serve. The impact translate into tears and smiles of appreciation and hope for what we can 

accomplish for these families.” 

When asked what difference the ASO makes in their work as a case manager, the following comments 

were made:   

• “ASO makes it easier to be able to provide essential services for the families. Sometimes initially 

the client’s only support is their case manager who has access to ASO.” 

• “Makes it easier to help families meet goals for stability.” 

• “It helps us help our caregivers when they are in a bind or have income restrictions when taking 

in family members.” 

• “ASO makes a huge difference in my work. When families are faced with financial issues it is very 

difficult for them to focus on child development, daily do's or reading to their children. If the 

family is worried about paying their rent it is impossible to get the family to get down on the 

floor to play with the babies.“ 



 8 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

 |
 1

1
/1

3
/2

0
2

0
 

• “Having the ASO as a last resort allows us to offer families an opportunity to have safe shelter, 

utilities, and necessities for their children when all other opportunities have failed.” 

 

SUMMARY 

 

The following success indicators were included in the agreement between Hillsborough County Social 

Services and the Children’s Board: 

1. During the reporting period, at least 90% of participating families developed a family support 

plan, as evidenced by a random sample of case files reviewed by the organization during 

monitoring visits.  

2. During reporting period, at least 60% of participating families report that the ASO and partner 

agencies have helped their family meet their family support plan goals.  

3. During the reporting period, at least 80% of participating families report they received the 

services needed to promote self-sufficiency.  

All success indicators were exceeded, based on monitoring visits and quality management survey 

responses: 

1. All families served are required to have a family support plan in which ASO services are 

documented.  Monitoring visits revealed that 93% of the County-funded ASO budgets 

reviewed included the service in the family support plan.  

2. 100% of participants agreed or somewhat agreed that the ASO has helped their family meet 

their goals.  

3. 94% of participants reported that they received the service that they needed the most.  

The partnership between Hillsborough County Social Services and the Children’s Board ASO has been 

successful in achieving the goal to enhance services to vulnerable families throughout Hillsborough 

County who are committed to becoming self-sufficient.  More than 300 participants and their families 

received services to promote stability and self-sufficiency.   

Hillsborough County BOCC Social Services and the Children’s Board continue to collaborate on serving 

vulnerable families, thereby reducing duplication of services, enhancing the efficiency of the system of 

care, and improving outcomes for families.  Hillsborough County Social Services renewed the agreement 

with the Children’s Board to provide $300,000 in housing supports for Fiscal Year 2021, which will be 

increasingly important as we navigate housing challenges for families during coronavirus pandemic.  



  ACTION ITEM NO. 7   

Approval of Contract with Hillsborough County BOCC 

Action Item - 7 
 

Initiator:  Rebecca Bacon, Director of the ASO 
 
Action:  Approval of Contract with Hillsborough County BOCC for Domestic Violence Funds 
 
Date:   Regular Board Meeting, September 27, 2021 
 
Recommended Action 
 

• To Approve a contract in the amount of $100,000 for the period of October 1, 2021 to 
September 30, 2022 with Hillsborough County BOCC for Administrative Services 
Organization Services to victims of Domestic Violence. 

 
Detail   

• The Children’s Board ASO began managing flexible funding for Hillsborough County BOCC 
for services for victims of domestic violence in Fiscal Year 2013 – 2014.  

• The original agreement was last modified in June of 2019, at which time three additional 
renewals were approved.   

• Flexible funds contributed to the ASO are allocated to programs at two case management 
organizations to support family support plan goals for domestic violence victims and their 
children.  

• The ASO manages the flexible funds and provides accounts payable services, detailed 
financial reporting, provider credentialing and network management, training and technical 
assistance, quality assurance, and monitoring. 

• Hillsborough County BOCC’s allocation of funds to the ASO is an essential component of the 
local service system for victims of domestic violence.  More than 250 participants have 
received services this year, primarily in the areas of housing supports and utilities, 
transportation related services, and other basic needs.  

 
 

Attachments 
 
A. Original Contract 
B. Administrative Renewal for Fiscal Year 2020 - 2021 







































































































Page 1 of 2 

ADMINISTRATIVE RENEWAL 
HEALTH CARE SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

Action:  Renew the Interlocal Agreement between Hillsborough County and Children’s Board of Hillsborough 
County (CBHC), BOCC Doc No. 13-1216, for the period of October 1, 2020 up to and including September 30, 
2021, at the same terms and conditions for the award amount of $100,000 for their Administrative Services 
Organization (ASO) to provide domestic violence victims direct support services.   

Delegation of Authority to County Administrator: Pursuant to the Modification to the Interlocal Agreement 
approved by the Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) on January 5, 2017, Article 2 of the Agreement 
authorizes the County Administrator, on behalf of the County, to unilaterally renew this Agreement for successive 
one-year periods not to exceed two renewal periods, upon its same terms and conditions then in effect, and 
increase or decrease the not to exceed amounts of annual funds payable by the County to reflect the adopted 
budget amount for the Children’s Board. 
 
The Interlocal Agreement with and Children’s Board of Hillsborough County (CBHC), (BOCC Doc No. 13-1216) 
was modified on May 1, 2019 which extended the term of the Agreement and added renewal periods.  
 
Background: On September 18, 2013, the Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) approved the reallocation 
of $100,000 to CBHC that originally was allocated to the Family Justice Center.  On December 18, 2013, the 
Board of County Commissioners approved an Agreement with the CBHC for the period of December 18, 2013 
through September 30, 2014 and has been administratively renewed each year. The CBHC administers payments 
for programs and services through their ASO and ensures the funds are directed towards individuals and families 
who are victims of domestic violence residing within Hillsborough County.  
 
Pursuant to its adoption of the FY 2021 Budget on September 17, 2020, the BOCC approved and appropriated 
the Award Amount enumerated in the Action section above without altering the other terms and conditions of the 
Agreement. 
 
FY 2021 funding for the services to victims of domestic violence is in the best interest of Hillsborough County 
residents who are in need of such services.  In accordance with Article 29 of the Agreement, funding may be 
reduced based on the availability of funds.   
 
FY 2019 Outcomes:   
 

 492 families (Victim of Domestic Violence and their Children) received concrete support to facilitate 
stability, safety and other family/program goals – exceeding their target of 350 families  

 100% of the 492 clients received at least one concrete support that contributed to the achievement of at 
least one of their Family Plan goals to facilitate their stability and safety consistent with their Family Plan- 
Meeting their 100% target  

 100% of case managers submitting payment requests on behalf of individuals/families reported they were 
satisfied with the timeliness of ASO payment – exceeding their 85% target  

 96% of participants reported that the ASO has helped their family meet their goals – Exceeding their 80% 
target  

 
Health Care Services Department: 
 
Approved: ____________________________________  Date: ___________________ 
 
 
Approved as to Legal Sufficiency: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C703131-01AA-4F24-A577-6439FBC9B5B7

9/24/2020

DocuSign Envelope ID: BA3DCB3C-5788-4EE8-B3A0-CA68CA11B5C6



Page 2 of 2 

 
Approved: ____________________________________  Date: ___________________  
 
Chief Human Services Administrator: 
 
Approved: ____________________________________  Date: ___________________ 
 
Management & Budget Office: 
 
Approved: ____________________________________  Date: ___________________ 
 
County Administrator’s Office: 
 
Approved: ____________________________________  Date: ___________________ 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6C703131-01AA-4F24-A577-6439FBC9B5B7

9/24/2020

9/24/2020

9/25/2020

DocuSign Envelope ID: BA3DCB3C-5788-4EE8-B3A0-CA68CA11B5C6

9/29/2020



  ACTION ITEM NO. 8   

Approval of Contract with Eckerd Connects 

Action Item - 8  
 

Initiator:  Rebecca Bacon, Director of the ASO 
 
Action:  Approval of Contract with Eckerd Connects 
 
Date:   Regular Board Meeting, September 27, 2021 
 
Recommended Action 
 

• To Approve a contract in the amount of $648,390 for the period of October 1, 2021 to June 
30, 2022 with Eckerd Connects for the administration of Eckerd Funding through the 
Administrative Services Organization (ASO). 

 
Detail   

• The Children’s Board ASO began managing flexible funding for Eckerd Connects in the last 
quarter of Fiscal Year 2017 - 2018.   

• Flexible funds contributed to the ASO are allocated to Eckerd’s contracted case management 
organizations to support case plan goals for families served in the child welfare system.   

• The ASO manages the flexible funds and provides accounts payable services, detailed 
financial reporting, provider credentialing and network management, training and technical 
assistance, quality assurance, and monitoring. 

• Eckerd’s fiscal year is July 1, to June 30, and a three (3) month contract for the period July 1 
– September 30, 2021 was approved by the Board in May.   

• Eckerd Connects is renewing the contract for the first nine (9) months of the Children’s 
Board fiscal year.    

• The contract includes: 
o $120,000 for the administration of the dollars, which funds two FTE’s. 
o $528,390 in flexible funding. 

 
 

Attachment 
 
A. Contract  















 

Children’s Board of Hillsborough County 
Executive Director Report 

August 26, 2021 – September 27, 2021            30  Meetings 
 
 

CALM Special Session  
FCC  
Michael McManus -HOST     
City of Tampa   
Placement Challenges Workgroup    
Mental Health Community Advisory Council   
FCC  
Built to Thrive Virtual Summit 2021     
Robin Nigh & Melissa LeBaron Davies- City of Tampa     
Junior League Tampa Bay   
United Way: Roadmap for Revitalization     
Carolyn Appleyard – CATS Demonstration     
Michael McManus & LaShawn Johnson – HOST  
Gene Earley – Hillsborough Health Care Services 
FCC  
Covid Simulator Meeting  
CALM Session   
Elizabeth Reedy Foley – Frameworks  
Statue Relocation Plan – City of Tampa   
Raintree Association Annual Meeting  
ECC Stakeholders Meeting    
Placement Challenges SubCommittee  
CADR   
FCC  
Michael McManus, LaShawn Johnson, Louis Murphy, and AnnMarie Courtney - HOST 
Mayor’s Workforce Council Meeting  
Community Affairs Placement SubCommittee Meeting 
Rebecca Kapusta – Eckerd Connects 
FCC  
Hillsborough Anti-Racism Workgroup  

 



ASO ONLY

FY 2021

Entity/Agency
Contract 

Type
Brief Description 

Contract 

Period

 Contract 

Amount 

 Board 

Approved 
Signed By Date Signed

Contract Signature Log

Eckerd Youth Alternatives, 

Inc. dba Eckerd Connects
Agreement

Amendment #1 to 

Agreement for ASO funds 

(adding $50,000)

7/1/21 - 

9/30/21
$265,446 Yes Kelley Parris 8/24/2021

Monica Lake dba Dr. Lake 

& Associates
ASO Provider

Assessment/Evaluation/F

amily Therapy, Individual 

Therapy 

9/1/21-ongoing Varies No Kelley Parris 9/1/2021

Monica Lake dba Dr. Lake 

& Associates
Agreement

Business Associate 

Agreement
9/1/21-ongoing Varies No Kelley Parris 9/1/2021



Contract Signature 
Programs ONLY
FY 2021

Entity/Agency
Contract 

Type
Brief Description Contract Period

 Contract 

Amount 

 Board 

Approved 
Signed By

Date 

Signed

REBUILDING TOGETHER 

TAMPA BAY, INC.

Letter of 

Agreement COVID-19 Prevention Kits

08/19/2021-

09/30/2021 $61,765 No Kelley Parris 9/9/2021

THE CHILDREN'S MUSEUM 

OF TAMPA, INC. D/B/A 

GLAZER CHILDREN'S 

MUSEUM Amendment

Children's Board Free 

Tuesday - Contract amount 

increased by $28,300 not 

to exceed $101,924.

Effective

 08/13/2021 $101,924 No Kelley Parris 9/14/2021



 

 

Monthly Financial Report 

August 2021 

Table of Contents 

 

Page 
Number 
 
 2. Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

 3. Financial Statement Category Definitions  

 4. Statement of Revenues and Expenditures  

 5. Revenue Variance Analysis 

 6. Expenditure Variance Analysis 

 8. Investments Statement 

 9. FY 2020 - 2021 Estimated Spending Report 

10.   FY 2020 - 2021 Estimated Spending Narrative 

11.   New Program Funding Report 

12. New Program Funding Detail 

  

  



FY 2020-2021

Original

Budget

Revenues

Ad-Valorem Taxes 49,762,422

Investment Income 231,000

Administrative Services Organization Funding 1,410,000

Other Community Partner Funding 410,000

Miscellaneous Income 156,000

Total Revenues 51,969,422

Expenditures

Program Expenditures:

Program Funding (Continuation Grants) 35,107,604

New Program Funding (unallocated) 9,165,000

Total Program Expenditures: 44,272,604

Operating

Employee Salaries and Benefits 4,529,438

Contracted Professional Services 377,433

Facility Expenditures 340,755

CBHC FRC Occupancy Expenditures 414,540

Other Operating 441,081

Total Operating 6,103,247

Capital Expenditures 1,431,000

Mandatory Government Fees 1,436,553

Total Expenditures 53,243,404

Net Spend Down of Fund Balance (1,273,982)

Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget

 

 

83%

3%
3%

8%
3%

Total Program
Expenditures
Mandatory Government
Fees
Direct Operating
Expenditures
Administrative Operating
Expenditures
Capital

 

2



Financial Statement Category Definitions 
 
 

• Revenue 
• Ad-Valorem Taxes includes current and delinquent ad-valorem tax revenue and excess 

fees returned to the Children’s Board originally paid to the county based on the tax revenue. 

• Investment Income includes revenue from various interest-bearing accounts. 

• Administrative Services Organization (ASO) funding represents contributions from other 

funders specifically designated for use by providers in the community managed by the 

Children’s Board ASO staff.  These dollars are also included in the program expenditure 

line. Examples are Eckerd Connects and Hillsborough County Board of County 

Commissioners (BOCC). 

• Other Community Partner funding represents funds contributed from community partners 

that are added to our provider contract amounts and included in the program funding line, 

for example, the School District of Hillsborough County and Hillsborough County BOCC. 

• Miscellaneous Income consists of ASO fiscal agent fees, contributions, and any other 

miscellaneous revenue received during the year. 

 

• Expenditures 

• Program Funding (Continuation Grants) represents provider contracts funded by 

Children’s Board, property tax revenue and funds contributed from our community partners.  

This amount also includes the dollars managed through the ASO to provide supports to 

case management programs. 

• New Program Funding (unallocated) includes dollars budgeted for new program contracts 

and one-time funding that will be released and awarded by a competitive or application 

process. 

• Employee Salaries and Benefits include wages paid to all non-contractor employees.  

Benefits represent costs provided for salaried and hourly wage employees including FICA, 

life and health insurance, short-term and long-term disability insurance, unemployment, and 

retirement benefits. 

• Contracted Professional Services represents amounts budgeted for Hillsborough County 

information technology services, Hillsborough County Television, legal, media buys, 

auditing, and other professional services. 

• Facility Expenditures represents necessary costs to operate the Children’s Board offices, 

conference center, and Family Resource Center buildings owned by CBHC, including 

utilities, information technology, maintenance, and repairs. 

• Other Operating contains staff training, conference and meeting travel, postage, insurance, 

promotional activities, printing, supplies, advertising for Truth In Millage (TRIM), budget ads 

and other public notices, memberships and subscriptions.  Also included are support 

activities with provider agencies and community organizations for training events. 

• Capital Expenditures include the budget for building expenditures. 

• Mandatory Government Fees include tax collector’s fee, property appraiser’s fee as well 

as the city storm water fee. 

 
 

3



August-2021

FY 2020- FY 2020- FY 2020- FY 2020-

2021 2021 2021 2021

YTD Budget YTD Actual Variance $ Variance %

Revenues

Ad-Valorem Taxes 49,560,472 49,948,251 387,779 1%

Investment Income 211,750 91,689 (120,061) -57%

Administrative Services Organization Funding 1,225,833 767,636 (458,197) -37%

Other Community Partner Funding 160,000 160,000 0 0%

Miscellaneous Income 143,000 165,080 22,080 15%

Total Revenues 51,301,055 51,132,656 (168,399) 0%

Expenditures

Program Expenditures:

Program Funding (Including Unallocated) 39,851,209 25,741,810 14,109,399 35%

Total Program Expenditures: 39,851,209 25,741,810 14,109,399 35%

Operating Expenditures

Employee Salaries and Benefits 4,151,985 3,681,100 470,885 11%

Contracted Professional Services 331,947 250,335 81,612 25%

Facility Expenditures 312,531 275,487 37,044 12%

CBHC FRC Occupancy Expenditures 379,995 374,043 5,952 2%

Other Operating 405,637 235,791 169,846 42%

Total Operating 5,582,095 4,816,756 765,339 14%

Capital Expenditures 1,431,000 1,370,059 60,941 4%

Mandatory Government Fees 1,436,553 1,338,453 98,100 7%

Total Expenditures 48,300,857 33,267,078 15,033,779

Net Cash Flow 3,000,198 17,865,578 14,865,380
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



Revenue Variance Analysis 

Statement of Revenues 

August-2021

FY 2020- FY 2020- FY 2020- FY 2020-

2021 2021 2021 2021

YTD Budget YTD Actual Variance $ Variance %

Revenues

Ad-Valorem Taxes 49,560,472 49,948,251 387,779 1%

Investment Income 211,750 91,689 (120,061) -57%

Administrative Services Organization Funding 1,225,833 767,636 (458,197) -37%

Other Community Partner Funding 160,000 160,000 0 0%

Miscellaneous Income 143,000 165,080 22,080 15%

Total Revenues 51,301,055 51,132,656 (168,399) 0%  

 

• Ad-Valorem Taxes 

o This line is over the YTD budget by $387,779 because more than the 95% of the tax 

revenue budgeted has been received. 101% of the budgeted ad-valorem tax revenue 

has been received to date. 

• Investment Income 

o The interest received year to date is under the YTD budget because of a decrease in the 

interest rate.  The current interest rate is 0.10% and interest was budgeted at 0.4%. 

• Administrative Services Organization 

o Eckerd Connects ASO actual expenditures were lower than budgeted YTD resulting in 

lower revenue received. 

• Other Community Partner Funding 

o This line is within budget. 

• Miscellaneous Income 

o This line is over budget because of a $26,796 prior year provider repayment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5



Expenditure Variance Analysis 

Statement of Expenditures 

August-2021 FY 2020- FY 2020- FY 2020- FY 2020-

2021 2021 2021 2021

YTD Budget YTD Actual Variance $ Variance %

Expenditures

Program Expenditures:

Program Funding (Including Unallocated) 39,851,209 25,741,810 14,109,399 35%

Total Program Expenditures: 39,851,209 25,741,810 14,109,399 35%

Operating

Employee Salaries and Benefits 4,151,985 3,681,100 470,885 11%

Contracted Professional Services 331,947 250,335 81,612 25%

Facility Expenditures 312,531 275,487 37,044 12%

CBHC FRC Occupancy Expenditures 379,995 374,043 5,952 2%

Other Operating 405,637 235,791 169,846 42%

Total Operating 5,582,095 4,816,756 765,339 14%

Capital Expenditures 1,431,000 1,370,059 60,941 4%

Mandatory Government Fees 1,436,553 1,338,453 98,100 7%

Total Expenditures 48,300,857 33,267,078 15,033,779  

• Program Expenditures 

o Continuation Grants are under budget because providers are not current on invoicing the 

Children’s Board including a few large contracts.  Continuation Grants are expected to 

be under budget by $3.9 Million at the end of the year. 

o Some of the contracts awarded through New Program Funding are not current on 

invoicing. 

o Unallocated Program Funding is expected to be under budget by $5.3 Million at the end 

of the year. 

• Employee Salaries and Benefits 

o This line is under budget because of vacant positions, lower CBHC share of health 

insurance cost, raises budgeted and not given, and a lower vacation payout. 

• Contracted Professional Services 

o This line item is under budget because of the timing of legal services and community 

education & awareness, offset by other professional services spending being over 

budget.  This line is expected to be under budget at the end of the year. 

• Facility Expenditures 

o This line item is under budget because of the timing of spending.  Electric service is over 

budget.  

• CBHC FRC Occupancy Expenditures  

o This line item is within budget. 

• Other Operating 

o This line item is under budget in travel, professional development, training & events, and 

insurance expenditures.  It is also under budget because of the timing of expenditures 

for printing and promotional items.  This line is expected to be under budget at the end of 

the year. 

• Capital Expenditures 

o This line is within budget as the Plant City FRC build out has been completed. 

6



• Mandatory Government Fees 

o The line item is slightly under budget because of property appraiser’s fees being less 

than expected for the year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7



Investment Instrument Financial Institution Balance Maturity Yield

Checking Wells Fargo Government 

Advantage

6,891,456 1 day 0.17%

LGIP Florida State Board of 

Administration

53,397,502 N/A 0.10%

60,288,958

Investments Statement 

Children's Board Of Hillsborough County

August-2021

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8



Estimated Projected

Budget Actual Difference

Revenue

Ad-Valorem Taxes 49,762,422    50,255,000    492,578        

Investment Income 231,000        109,600        (121,400)       

Administrative Services Organization (ASO) 1,410,000     1,400,000     (10,000)         

Other Community Partner 410,000        296,186        (113,814)       

Miscellaneous Income 156,000        160,000        4,000            

Total Revenue 51,969,422    52,220,786    251,364        

Expenditures

Program:

Program Funding (Continuation Grants) 35,107,604    31,243,593    3,864,011     

CBHC Unallocated Program Funding 9,165,000     3,823,973     5,341,027     

Total Program Expenditures: 44,272,604    35,067,566    9,205,038     

Operating Expenditures

Employee Salaries and Benefits 4,529,438     4,027,839     501,599        

Contracted Professional Services 377,433        297,639        79,794          

CBHC FRC Occupancy Expenditures 414,540        399,866        14,674          

Facility Expenditures 340,755        329,406        11,349          

Other Operating 441,081        283,310        157,771        

Total Operating Expenditures 6,103,247     5,338,060     765,187        

Capital Expenditures 1,431,000     1,431,000     -                   

Mandatory Government Fees 1,436,553     1,349,620     86,933          

Total Expenditures 53,243,404    43,186,246    10,057,158    

Total Projected Difference 10,308,522    

Children's Board Of Hillsborough County

FY 2020 - 2021 Estimated Spending

FY 2020 - 

2021

FY 2020 - 

2021

FY 2020 - 

2021

 

 

9



• Revenue 

• Total Revenue is projected to be over budget by a net amount of $251,364.   

• Ad-Valorem Tax Revenue is expected to be over budget by $492,578 as more than 95% of 

the tax revenue has been received.   

• Investment Income is projected to be under budget by $121,400.  The current interest rate is 

.19% which is lower than the .4% budgeted. 

• The Administrative Services Organization (ASO) revenue is expected to be under budget by 

$10,000 because it is estimated that the ASO will have no expenditures and revenue in the 

DCF contract.   

• Other Community Partner Revenue is expected to be under budget because the co-funded 

summer services expenditures were under budget.  This was offset by a $20,000 match grant 

received from the City of Plant City for build out of the Plant City CBHC FRC. 

• Miscellaneous Income is expected to be over budget by $4,000 because of additional 

revenue received from the cash back program from Wells Fargo credit cards. 

 

• Expenditures 

• Program Expenditures 

• Total Program Expenditures are expected to be under budget by $9.2 Million. 

o Continuation Grants are expected to be under budget by $3.9 Million. 

▪ It is estimated that the ASO will spend $10,000 less than the allocated amount 

of other funder’s allocations and $1.1 Million less in CBHC allocations. 

▪ Negotiated Continuation Contracts were under budget by $530,508.  $131,400 

was allocated to other services leaving $399,108 unallocated.  

▪ Estimated under spending of the remaining continuation contracts is $2.4 

Million. 

o Unallocated Program Funding is expected to be under budget by $5.3 Million. 

• Operating Expenditures 

• Salaries and Benefits are under budget by $501,599 because of vacant positions throughout 

the year. 

• Contracted Professional Services are expected to be under budget by $79,794 because of 

under spending in legal services, County IT services, and public relations contracted services. 

• CBHC FRC Occupancy Expenditures are under budget by $14,674 because telephone 

expense was budgeted for all centers and only paid by CBHC for two owned facilities. 

• Facilities Expenditures are under budget by a net amount of $11,349.  All the planned 

projects were not completed by September 30, 2020 and were completed and paid in FY 

2020 – 2021 in addition to the planned project for FY 2021 – 2022 not being completed.   

• Other Operating Expenditures are expected to be under budget by $157,771.  This includes 

professional development, subscriptions, local travel, meeting travel, insurance, promotional 

materials, supplies, printing, and community training. 

• Capital Expenditures 

• Capital Expenditures are expected to be within budget.   

• Mandatory Government Fees 

• The property appraiser’s fee was under budget by approximately $86,000.   

 

 

10



Children's Board of Hillsborough County

FY 2020-2021 NEW PROGRAM FUNDING (UNALLOCATED) REPORT
Regular Board Meeting - September 27, 2021

Beginning 

Budget Adjustments

Revised 

Budget

 YTD Amount 

Approved  

 YTD 

Uncommitted 

Funds 

Available 

 Current 

Funding 

Requests 

 Uncommitted 

Funds 

Available 

Technical Assistance

Funding (Agencies 

Not Currently Funded by 

CBHC) 130,000         (3,145)           126,855         59,586           67,269            67,269           

Technical Assistance

Funding (Agencies

Currently Funded by 

CBHC) 70,000          70,000          13,640           56,360            56,360           

Summer Passport for 

Kids 250,000         250,000         95,948           154,052          154,052         

Leading Grants 

(Summer Funding) 500,000         500,000         232,373          267,627          267,627         

Emerging Needs 

Funding 500,000         500,000         -                 500,000          500,000         

Emergency Funding 700,000         700,000         325,214          374,786          -                374,786         

Match 300,000         300,000         40,425           259,575          259,575         

Technical Assistance - 

Neighborhood Assoc. 15,000          3,145            18,145          18,145           -                 -                

CBHC Tech Support to 

Families Uniting Grant 400,000         400,000         399,654          346                346                

Palm River, Clair-Mel 

Uniting Grant 300,000         300,000         -                 300,000          300,000         

Pilot Project - Early 

Learning Opportunities 1,000,000      1,000,000      -                 1,000,000       1,000,000       

CBHC FRC 3,000,000      3,000,000      2,700,753       299,247          299,247         

Racial Equity Funding 2,000,000      2,000,000      -                 2,000,000       2,000,000       

Totals 9,165,000      -                9,165,000      3,885,738       5,279,262       -                5,279,262       

Original Continuation Funding Budget 35,107,604   

Actual Contract Amount Negotiated 34,577,096   

  Additional Amount Available from Continuation Program Dollars 530,508        

Expansion of Safe Baby Plus Program (63,400)         

Glazer CBHC Free Tuesday Amendment for Plant City Exhibits (33,000)         

Hills. Co. School Readiness Coalition dba Early Learning Coalition July - Sept Contract (35,000)         

  Balance Available 399,108         

11



Regular Board Meeting - September 27, 2021

Agency Program  Funding Description

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Not 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Summer 

Passport 

for Kids 

 Leading 

Grants

Summer 

Funding 

 Emerging 

Community 

Needs 

Funding 

 

Emergency 

Funding  Match 

 Technical 

Assistance - 

Neighborhood 

Associations 

 CBHC 

Tech 

Support to 

Families 

 Palm 

River, Clair-

Mel Uniting 

Grant 

 Pilot 

Proj. 

Early 

Learning 

Opportun. 

 CBHC 

FRC 

 Racial 

Equity 

Funding 

Various Child 

Care 

Providers

Child Care for 

Health Care 

Professionals 

and Frist 

Responders

Provide child care for children 

of health care professionals 

and first responders.      20,269 

Lutheran 

Family 

Services, Inc.

CBHC Family 

Resource 

Centers 

Managing 

Agency

Manage seven (7) Family 

Resource Centers - providing 

universal access of services 

to families throughout 

Hillsborough County.  2,700,753 

Hillsborough 

Education 

Foundation, 

Inc.

CB Tech - 

Learning at 

Home

Provide services and 

equipment to families with 

elementary age school 

children, in need of e-learning 

assistance in public schools.    399,654 

Oasis 

Network of 

New Tampa, 

Inc.

Back to 

Basics:  

School 

Clothing

Funds will be used to provide 

school uniform shorts and 

shirts for 1116 students in the 

top 40 neediest elementary 

schools and their ancillary Pre-

K programs in the 

Hillsborough County Public 

School District.       16,424 

Pregnancy 

Care Center 

of Plant City 

Capacity 

Building

Helping inform women (based 

off Christian values) about the 

sanctity of life and go through 

the pregnancy and birthing 

process.  Funding for 

purchase of tablets to 

enhance delivery to clients.       2,400 

Heart Gallery 

of Tampa

Exhibit 

Innovations 

and Marketing 

Portfolio

HGoT uses photographic 

exhibits to introduce foster 

children awaiting families.  

Funding going towards a 

marketing portfolio and the 

cost of printing.  In addition, 

two divider walls about 778 

total requested.       4,948 

Frameworks 

of Tampa 

Bay Inc.

Building Board 

Capacity 

through 

Assessment

Funding will be used to find 

and improve boards 

effectiveness.  This is to aid in 

the board making decisions 

allowing Frameworks to 

empower educators of the 

youth.       5,000 

FY 2020-2021 Approved Uncommitted Program Funding Detail

12



Regular Board Meeting - September 27, 2021

Agency Program  Funding Description

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Not 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Summer 

Passport 

for Kids 

 Leading 

Grants

Summer 

Funding 

 Emerging 

Community 

Needs 

Funding 

 

Emergency 

Funding  Match 

 Technical 

Assistance - 

Neighborhood 

Associations 

 CBHC 

Tech 

Support to 

Families 

 Palm 

River, Clair-

Mel Uniting 

Grant 

 Pilot 

Proj. 

Early 

Learning 

Opportun. 

 CBHC 

FRC 

 Racial 

Equity 

Funding 

FY 2020-2021 Approved Uncommitted Program Funding Detail

Community 

Roots 

Collective

Growing the 

Roots

A general support 

organization for families with 

young children, asking for 

grant certification course, a 

marketing brochure, and a 

website redesign with 

maintenance.       5,000 

After School 

All Stars 

Tampa Bay

Learning Loss 

Curriculum

Providing academic 

curriculum for two sites 

serving young children.  

Funding is for second site and 

buys teaching kits.       4,990 

K2 Escape, 

Inc

Capacity 

Building

K2 holds events teaching 

young children independent 

living, life skills, and many 

other needed life skills.  

Funding going towards Board 

training/coaching and 

developing measurable 

outcomes.  The other main 

request is funding for a new 

website.       5,000 

Early 

Childhood 

Council of 

Hillsborough 

County Inc.

Participant 

Database 

Project

Support Services.  Asking for 

money to improve upon 

central database (from Gonzo 

Systems) in order to more 

efficiently hold activities for 

the target people being 

helped.  Specifically, the 

Community Developmental 

Screening Program and 

Inclusion       4,680 

Parents and 

Children 

Advance 

Together 

Literacy 

Ministries, Inc

Virtual 

Learning 

Technology

Provide literacy programs to 

children k-2.  Funding for 

printers/laptops to aid in 

eLearning.       1,560 

13



Regular Board Meeting - September 27, 2021

Agency Program  Funding Description

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Not 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Summer 

Passport 

for Kids 

 Leading 

Grants

Summer 

Funding 

 Emerging 

Community 

Needs 

Funding 

 

Emergency 

Funding  Match 

 Technical 

Assistance - 

Neighborhood 

Associations 

 CBHC 

Tech 

Support to 

Families 

 Palm 

River, Clair-

Mel Uniting 

Grant 

 Pilot 

Proj. 

Early 

Learning 

Opportun. 

 CBHC 

FRC 

 Racial 

Equity 

Funding 

FY 2020-2021 Approved Uncommitted Program Funding Detail

Preserve 

Vision Florida

Empowerment 

Program 

Evaluation 

/Analysis

Preserve Vision does vision 

screenings and education to 

help those who cannot afford 

it themselves.  Funding for 

consultation providing 

presentations on 

empowerment data, best 

practice program design, and 

result of review.       5,000 

ReDefiners 

World 

Languages, 

Inc 

2021 Strategic 

Capacity 

Building

ReDefiners teaches children 

about service learning, 

communication, global 

citizenship, literacy, and anti-

bullying. Funding for HR 

Tools, tablet, and Educational 

Course software.       4,881 

Bess the 

Book Bus

Increased 

Capacity for 

Bess!

Mobile reading lab asking for 

funding for web designer to 

make updates to website as 

well as development plan.  A 

virtual phone number with a 

laser printer/scanner in 

addition.       4,532 

Where Love 

Grows Inc

Website and 

Social Media 

Upgrade

WLG holds events to teach 

cooking while also providing 

for to underfed homes.  

Funding requested for a 

camera and website 

contractor.       4,250 

Love INC of 

Metro Tampa 

Inc

REACH 

Program 

Implementatio

n

Love Inc uses staff and 

volunteers to put on many 

events to feed and educate 

primarily struggling single 

mothers and families.  

Funding for computers to aid 

in Help Center operations and 

REACH training.       3,940 

14



Regular Board Meeting - September 27, 2021

Agency Program  Funding Description

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Not 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Summer 

Passport 

for Kids 

 Leading 

Grants

Summer 

Funding 

 Emerging 

Community 

Needs 

Funding 

 

Emergency 

Funding  Match 

 Technical 

Assistance - 

Neighborhood 

Associations 

 CBHC 

Tech 

Support to 

Families 

 Palm 

River, Clair-

Mel Uniting 

Grant 

 Pilot 

Proj. 

Early 

Learning 

Opportun. 

 CBHC 

FRC 

 Racial 

Equity 

Funding 

FY 2020-2021 Approved Uncommitted Program Funding Detail

Ryan Nece 

Foundation

Social Media 

and Digital 

marketing Plan

RNF donates volunteers time 

doing many different projects 

in the community as well as 

serving meals and delivering 

supplies/food.  Funding is to 

create an email drip 

campaign, newsletters, social 

advertising, engagement 

software tools, and 

promotional contests.       5,000 

Girls On the 

Run Greater 

Tampa Bay

IDEA 

Consultant

Put together events to help 

young women learn while 

integrating running into their 

lives.  Funding will go to 

Inclusivity to increase support, 

board, volunteers, staff, and 

community via a strategic plan 

and 3 strategy sessions.       5,000 

Florida 1.27 

Inc.

Florida 1.27 

Video Project 

To aid in equipping churches 

with the materials they need 

to serve children they are 

asking for funding for 

Polyphonic Image 

Productions to create a video 

that will demonstrate what 

Florida 1.27 does and what it 

offers to the community.       5,000 

TRIBE 

Seminole 

Heights Update 20.21

Tribe provides educational 

classes for young children in a 

variety of different lie skills.  

Funding will be used for 

printing 

banners/stickers/envelopes/le

tterhead, as well as a 

Zoom+Mailchimp license for 

one year.  Additionally, 

funding requested for 

Volunteer management 

system/QuickBooks, and 

touchless hand sanitizers.       2,045 

15



Regular Board Meeting - September 27, 2021

Agency Program  Funding Description

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Not 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Summer 

Passport 

for Kids 

 Leading 

Grants

Summer 

Funding 

 Emerging 

Community 

Needs 

Funding 

 

Emergency 

Funding  Match 

 Technical 

Assistance - 

Neighborhood 

Associations 

 CBHC 

Tech 

Support to 

Families 

 Palm 

River, Clair-

Mel Uniting 

Grant 

 Pilot 

Proj. 

Early 

Learning 

Opportun. 

 CBHC 

FRC 

 Racial 

Equity 

Funding 

FY 2020-2021 Approved Uncommitted Program Funding Detail

Tampa Bay 

Network to 

End Hunger, 

Inc. MOW 4 Kids

The program will deliver (4) 

week’s worth of nutritious 

food to the transportation-

disadvantaged and/or 

homebound children and their 

families in Tampa designated 

zip codes.      75,000 

Dawning 

Family 

Services, Inc.

A Path to 

Prevention

This program would consist 

providing housing case 

management services to 

assist people who have lost 

their housing, or who are at 

imminent risk of losing their 

housing, avoid entering 

shelter or unsheltered 

homelessness by helping 

them identify alternative 

places to stay.    116,235 

#39 - Laurel 

Vista 

Homeowners 

Association, 

Inc

Neighborhood 

Safety Grant

Make a border on common 

property so children are 

playing away from traffic.            2,500 

Logan Gate 

Village 

Special 

Dependent 

Tax District

Neighborhood 

Safety Grant

Provide families with children 

bike helmets and bike safety 

training.            2,280 

OAKS 

CONDOMINI

UM I 

ASSOCIATI

ON, INC.

Neighborhood 

Safety Grant

Replace timbers at the front of 

each building since they are 

deteriorated and dangerous 

allowing children to have spot 

to play.            2,500 

Northdale 

Civic 

Association, 

Inc.

Neighborhood 

Safety Grant

Provide families with children 

bike helmets and bike safety 

training.            2,280 

Bloomingdale 

- DD 

Homeowners' 

Association, 

Inc 

Neighborhood 

Safety Grant

Provide families with children 

bike helmets and bike safety 

training.            2,280 

16



Regular Board Meeting - September 27, 2021

Agency Program  Funding Description

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Not 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Summer 

Passport 

for Kids 

 Leading 

Grants

Summer 

Funding 

 Emerging 

Community 

Needs 

Funding 

 

Emergency 

Funding  Match 

 Technical 

Assistance - 

Neighborhood 

Associations 

 CBHC 

Tech 

Support to 

Families 

 Palm 

River, Clair-

Mel Uniting 

Grant 

 Pilot 

Proj. 

Early 

Learning 

Opportun. 

 CBHC 

FRC 

 Racial 

Equity 

Funding 

FY 2020-2021 Approved Uncommitted Program Funding Detail

The Estates 

at River 

Crossing 

Homeowners 

Association, 

Inc

Neighborhood 

Safety Grant

Provide families with children 

bike helmets and bike safety 

training.            2,280 

Addison 

Manor 

Homeowners 

Association, 

Inc.

Neighborhood 

Safety Grant

Provide families with children 

bike helmets and bike safety 

training.            2,280 

Brookwood 

Residential 

Owners 

Association, 

Inc

Neighborhood 

Safety Grant

Provide families with children 

bike helmets and bike safety 

training.               380 

Camellia 

Estates 

Homeowners 

Association, 

Inc.

Neighborhood 

Safety Grant

Provide families with children 

bike helmets and bike safety 

training.               390 

Moss Creek 

of 

Hillsborough 

Homeowners 

Association, 

Inc.

Neighborhood 

Safety Grant

Provide families with children 

bike helmets and bike safety 

training.               975 

Housing 

Authority of 

the City of 

Tampa

Tampa 

Housing 

Authority 2021 

Summer 

Enrichment 

Program

Providing (50) youth full day 

programming, daily lunch and 

snack, field trips, and a 

positive youth development 

program.     25,590 

Tampa 

Metropolitan 

Area Young 

Men’s 

Christian 

Association, 

Inc.

2021 Teen 

Summer 

Experience

Providing (40) at risk youth an 

array of support and 

enrichment programming in 

an effort to provide a positive 

experience and limit summer 

learning loss.     29,659 

17



Regular Board Meeting - September 27, 2021

Agency Program  Funding Description

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Not 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Summer 

Passport 

for Kids 

 Leading 

Grants

Summer 

Funding 

 Emerging 

Community 

Needs 

Funding 

 

Emergency 

Funding  Match 

 Technical 

Assistance - 

Neighborhood 

Associations 

 CBHC 

Tech 

Support to 

Families 

 Palm 

River, Clair-

Mel Uniting 

Grant 

 Pilot 

Proj. 

Early 

Learning 

Opportun. 

 CBHC 

FRC 

 Racial 

Equity 

Funding 

FY 2020-2021 Approved Uncommitted Program Funding Detail

Tampa 

Heights 

Junior Civic 

Association

THJCA 

Summer Youth 

Program

Providing (60) youth in-

school, after school, and 

summer/non school day 

wraparound services.  

Enhancement activities will 

incorporate evidence-based 

curriculums programs and 

parental engagement.  

   39,531 

Florida 

Education 

Fund, Inc.

Wimauma 

Summer 

Art+Sports+ 

Tech Camp

Providing (20) youth classes 

in code, artwork while 

creating phone apps, play 

sports, learn first aid/water 

safety, practice reading, and 

bucket drumming.  Youth will 

also be prepared for 

middle/high school/college via 

exploring careers and taking 

weekly field trips.    17,315 

Florida 

Education 

Fund, Inc.

Gibsonton 

Summer 

Art+Sports+ 

Tech Camp

Providing (20) youth classes 

in code, artwork while 

creating phone apps, play 

sports, learn first aid/water 

safety, practice reading, and 

bucket drumming.  Youth will 

also be prepared for 

middle/high school/college via 

exploring careers and taking 

weekly field trips.    17,315 

Redefiners 

World 

Languages, 

Inc.

2021 Summer 

Spanish 

Immersion 

Technology 

Program (LIT)

Providing (20) youth 

experience in exploring 

Puerto Rican and Mexican 

culture through dance, food, 

and customs.  Youth are 

introduced to the Spanish 

language, coding, robotics, 

and weekly swim lessons.    18,920 

Tampa Bay 

Community & 

Family 

Development 

Corporation 

d/b/a 

Bethesda 

Ministries UpWard Kids

Providing (25) youth summer 

camp with classes covering 

all 6  mandatory service 

areas.    26,403 

18



Regular Board Meeting - September 27, 2021

Agency Program  Funding Description

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Not 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Summer 

Passport 

for Kids 

 Leading 

Grants

Summer 

Funding 

 Emerging 

Community 

Needs 

Funding 

 

Emergency 

Funding  Match 

 Technical 

Assistance - 

Neighborhood 

Associations 

 CBHC 

Tech 

Support to 

Families 

 Palm 

River, Clair-

Mel Uniting 

Grant 

 Pilot 

Proj. 

Early 

Learning 

Opportun. 

 CBHC 

FRC 

 Racial 

Equity 

Funding 

FY 2020-2021 Approved Uncommitted Program Funding Detail

Family 

Enrichment 

Center Inc.

2021 STEAM-

sational 

Summer 

Program

Providing (50) youth A steam 

program aiming to keep 

children’s minds active over 

the summer months and avoid 

the brain dump that can occur 

when a child leaves school for 

an extended period.    27,640 

Mount Zion 

African 

Methodist 

Episcopal 

Church of 

Riverview, 

Inc.

USJ's Camp 

Good Trouble

Providing (40) youth a literacy 

camp with an academic 

environment in areas of 

reading, writing, language 

arts, Spanish, Stem, safety, 

nutrition, fitness, character 

development, swimming, and 

the arts.  Campers engage in 

fun filled settings including 

field trips to stimulate the 

learning process and 

decrease the learning lag of 

summer.    30,000 

Girl Scouts of 

West Central 

Florida

STEM Camp 

Experience in 

Sulphur 

Springs

Will provide STEM 

programming to girls who 

attend Sulphur Springs K-8 

Community Partnership 

School.  14,860 

Children's 

Museum of 

Tampa, Inc. 

D/B/A Glazer 

Children's 

Museum

2021 Summer 

Passports

Scholarships for children ages 

6-14 who are members of the 

Children's Board Family 

Resource Centers to 

participate in summer 

programs.   17,748 

Florida 

Aquarium

2021 Summer 

Passports

Scholarships for children ages 

6-14 who are members of the 

Children's Board Family 

Resource Centers to 

participate in summer 

programs.     3,740 

Museum of 

Science & 

Industry

2021 Summer 

Passports

Scholarships for children ages 

6-14 who are members of the 

Children's Board Family 

Resource Centers to 

participate in summer 

programs.   22,400 

19



Regular Board Meeting - September 27, 2021

Agency Program  Funding Description

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Not 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Summer 

Passport 

for Kids 

 Leading 

Grants

Summer 

Funding 

 Emerging 

Community 

Needs 

Funding 

 

Emergency 

Funding  Match 

 Technical 

Assistance - 

Neighborhood 

Associations 

 CBHC 

Tech 

Support to 

Families 

 Palm 

River, Clair-

Mel Uniting 

Grant 

 Pilot 

Proj. 

Early 

Learning 

Opportun. 

 CBHC 

FRC 

 Racial 

Equity 

Funding 

FY 2020-2021 Approved Uncommitted Program Funding Detail

Tampa Bay 

Lightning 

Foundation

2021 Summer 

Passports

Scholarships for children ages 

6-14 who are members of the 

Children's Board Family 

Resource Centers to 

participate in summer 

programs.     9,000 Tampa Bay 

Performing 

Arts Center 

D/B/A Straz 

Center for 

the 

Performing 

Arts

2021 Summer 

Passports

Scholarships for children ages 

6-14 who are members of the 

Children's Board Family 

Resource Centers to 

participate in summer 

programs.     5,124 

Tampa 

Museum of 

Art

2021 Summer 

Passports

Scholarships for children ages 

6-14 who are members of the 

Children's Board Family 

Resource Centers to 

participate in summer 

programs.     5,400 

Zoo Tampa 

at Lowery 

Park

2021 Summer 

Passports

Scholarships for children ages 

6-14 who are members of the 

Children's Board Family 

Resource Centers to 

participate in summer 

programs.   32,536 

Florida State 

University

Professional 

Development 

Hillsborough 

County Public 

Schools

Cognitively Guided Instruction 

is an evidence-based 

curriculum for professional 

development that improves 

teacher instruction and child 

learning.  The Match would 

support additional teachers 

beyond current primary grant 

capacity; (30) teachers are on 

a waitlist for training.  25,565 

Housing 

Authority of 

the City of 

Tampa

Tampa 

Housing 

Authority 

Housing 

Counseling 

Support 

Services

Providing individualized 
financial wellness planning 
through evidence‐informed 
training in small groups either in‐
person or virtually.  Participants 
will gain increased knowledge or 
community resources and 
concrete supports and improved 
financial security.      19,932 

20



Regular Board Meeting - September 27, 2021

Agency Program  Funding Description

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Not 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Technical 

Assistance 

Funding 

(Agencies 

Currently 

Funded by 

CBHC) 

 Summer 

Passport 

for Kids 

 Leading 

Grants

Summer 

Funding 

 Emerging 

Community 

Needs 

Funding 

 

Emergency 

Funding  Match 

 Technical 

Assistance - 

Neighborhood 

Associations 

 CBHC 

Tech 

Support to 

Families 

 Palm 

River, Clair-

Mel Uniting 

Grant 

 Pilot 

Proj. 

Early 

Learning 

Opportun. 

 CBHC 

FRC 

 Racial 

Equity 

Funding 

FY 2020-2021 Approved Uncommitted Program Funding Detail

Solita's 

House, Inc.

Comprehensiv

e Housing 

Counseling 

Services

Providing homebuyer education, 
pre‐purchasing counseling, 
rental counseling, post purchase 
counseling, foreclosure 
interventions, and default 
counseling services.  The goal of 
these services is to help families 
attain homeownership, retain 
homeownership, and reduce the 
risk of homelessness.      15,589 

Rebuilding 

Together 

Tampa Bay, 

Inc.

COVID-19 

Prevention Kits

In response to the rise in COVID 
cases the Children’s Board 
Family Resource Centers are 
open and welcome in‐person 
services.  RTTB has designed kits 
that can be used to provide 
COVID education to families and 
provided needed supplies to 
stay healthy.      61,765 , , y y

TOTAL     59,586     13,640   95,948  232,373              -      325,214  40,425          18,145    399,654              -              -    2,700,753            -   

Total Approved                               3,885,738 

Total Current Requests                                            -   

21



 

 
 

Summary Report 
Pro 2021-08 Social Enterprise Competition 

 
Prepared: August 24th, 2021 

 
March 8th, 2021 – Announcement of Social Enterprise Competition Funding Opportunity was released with 
posting on CBHC website; posting in the March 2021 e-newsletter; followed by legal advertisements in the Florida 
Sentinel, La Gaceta, and Tampa Bay Times.    
 
April 23rd, 2021– Four (4) Letters of Intent (LOI) were received by the 11:59 PM deadline.  
 
June 1st, 2021 – Two (2) Social Enterprise proposals were received by the 4:00 PM deadline and two finalists were 
selected to present proposals to the panel judges/review team. 
 
August 12th, 2021 – A review team of Lynn Kroesen, (Entrepreneur Collaborative Center), Ryan Combs, (Real 
Estate Developer), and Judith DeStasio (MacDonald Training Center) rated and ranked applications and 
presentations based on highest to lowest total scores received.   
 
Recommendations and scores are as follows: 
 

Organization Venture Name 

1: Alignment 
/ ROI 

 
 

(Max 60) 

2. Social 
Enterprise 

Plan 
 

(Max 30)  

3. Overall 
Impression  

 
 

(Max 10) 

Bonus 
Points 

 
 

(Max 4) 

 FINAL 
SCORE 
out of 
100 

Zoe’s Story 
Writing Warriors 

Wellness App 
52.50 26.56 8.54 3 90.60 

Just Initiative Sweet Justice 40.83 19.06 7.50 2.67 70.06 

 
 
Based on application scoring:  
 
2021 1st Place Winner: Zoe’s Story – Writing Warriors Wellness App - $25,000 
2021 2nd Place Winner: n/a 
  
Respectfully Submitted, 
Maria Negron, Director of Programs and Jacob Resnick, Project Manager 
 
 

 



Children's Board of Hillsborough County

FY 2021 Provider Evaluations Preliminary Part II  - September 27, 2021

Initial Results -

August 2021

Preliminary Results -

September 2021
Agency/Program Funding Initial Score

27-30 Good Standing
22 - 26 May need improvement plan

< 22 Program of Concern

CHILDREN'S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH

COUNTY

PRELIMINARY PART II EVALUATION

2020 - 2021

$73,007ABE BROWN MINISTRIES, INC.

(Family Reunification and Video Visitation)

27 Good Standing Contract Ending 9/30/2021

BAY AREA LEGAL SERVICES, INC.

(Lawyers Helping Kids)

Deliverables in Progress

Continue Funding
$634,797 N/A Deliverables in Progress

BIG BROTHERS BIG SISTERS OF TAMPA BAY,

INC. (1-to-l Comprehensive Mentoring) $523,540 Good Standing Continue Funding30

BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF TAMPA BAY, INC.

(After-Zone Middle School Initiative) $498,586 Good Standing Continue Funding30

CHAMPIONS FOR CHILDREN, INC.

(Parents as Teachers )
Continue Funding$1,271,256 Good Standing29

Continue Funding with
Modifications

CHAMPIONS FOR CHILDREN, INC.

(The First Years )
$802,315 Good Standing29

CHILDREN'S HOME, INC., THE D/B/A

CHILDREN'S HOME NETWORK (Kinship

Hillsborough)

Continue FundingGood Standing$551,607 30

CHILDREN'S HOME, INC., THE D/B/A

CHILDREN'S HOME NETWORK (Supporting

and Empowering Educational and

Developmental Services - SEEDS)

Continue FundingGood Standing$2,060,000 30

CHILDREN'S MUSEUM OF TAMPA, INC., THE,

D/B/A GLAZER CHILDREN'S MUSEUM

(Children's Board Free Tuesday)

Deliverables in Progress

Continue Funding
N/A Deliverables in Progress$101,924

CHILDREN'S MUSEUM OF TAMPA, INC., THE,

D/B/A GUZER CHILDREN'S MUSEUM (Learn

& Play Tampa Bay Pilot Project)
Continue FundingGood Standing$530,000 29

COMPUTER MENTORS GROUP, INC.

(KidsCode and TeenTech)
Contract Ending 9/30/2021Good Standing$184,195 28

CORPORATION TO DEVELOP COMMUNITIES
Continue FundingGood Standing$105,639 30OF TAMPA, INC.,

(3D Stingrays)
Continue Funding with

Modifications
CRISIS CENTER OF TAMPA BAY, INC., THE

(Gateway Services)
Good Standing$374,500 27

Continue Funding with
Modifications

DACCO BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.

(Family Focus)
Good Standing$462,727 29

DAWNING FAMILY SERVICES, INC.

(A Path to Prevention)

Continue Funding

Newly Funded March 2021
N/A Newly Funded March 2021$137,500

Continue Funding with Provider

improvement Plan

DAWNING FAMILY SERVICES, INC.

(From Shelter to Stability)
Good Standing$324,317 27

EARLY CHILDHOOD COUNCIL OF

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, INC. (Community

Developmental Screening Program)
Continue FundingGood Standing$658,859 27

EARLY CHILDHOOD COUNCIL OF

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, INC. (Inclusion

Support Services)

Continue FundingGood Standing$420,054 29

ENTERPRISING LATINA'S, INC.

(Women's Opportunity Initiative)
Contract Ending 9/30/2021Good Standing$278,263 28

(Final Part II completed at end of Fiscal Year) 1



Children's Board of Hillsborough County

FY 2021 Provider Evaluations Preliminary Part II  - September 27, 2021

Initial Results -

August 2021

Preliminary Results -

September 2021
Agency/Program Funding Initial Score

27-30 Good Standing
22 - 26 May need improvement plan

<22 Program of Concern

CHILDREN'S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH

COUNTY

PRELIMINARY PART II EVALUATION

2020 - 2021

FAMILY ENRICHMENT CENTER, INC., THE

(Kinship Care)
$276,459 Good Standing Continue Funding30

FAMILY HEALTHCARE FOUNDATION, INC.

(Connecting Kids to CARE)
$216,936 Good Standing Continue Funding28

FEEDING AMERICA TAMPA BAY, INC. D/B/A
FEEDING TAMPA BAY

(Feeding Minds)
FLORIDA STATE UNIVERSITY

(Foundations for Success: Developing Effective

Mathematics Educators Through Cognitively

Guided Instruction)

Pending Additional Information

Continue Funding
$64,000 N/A Pending Additional Information

Continue Funding

Newly Funded June 2021
$25,565 N/A Newly Funded June 2021

GIRL SCOUTS OF WEST CENTRAL FLORIDA,

INC. (Leaders Engaging Girls in Taking Action -

LEGIT)

$192,627 Contract Ended 4/30/2021 Contract Ended 4/30/202126

GIRL SCOUTS OF WEST CENTRAL FLORIDA,

INC. (STEM Camp Experience in Sulphur

Springs)
GULF COAST JEWISH FAMILY AND

COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

(Good Afternoon Friends and Amigos)

$14,860 N/A One-time Funding One-time Funding

Continue Funding$253,995 Good Standing30

GULF COAST JEWISH FAMILY AND

COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

(Woman to Woman)

Continue Funding with
Modifications$498,208 Good Standing27

HEALTHY START COALITION OF

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, INC.

(Healthy Families Hillsborough)
HEALTHY START COALITION OF

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, INC.

(HealthySteps Hillsborough)
HEALTHY START COALITION OF

Continue FundingGood Standing$1,989,580 29

Continue Funding$349,100 Good Standing27

Continue Funding$1,124,220 Good Standing29HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, INC.

(Safe Baby Plus)
HILLSBOROUGH COMMUNITY COLLEGE

FOUNDATION, INC., THE

(Quality Early Education System)

Continue Funding$2,364,422 Good Standing30

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY SCHOOL READINESS

COALITION, INC. D/B/A EARLY LEARNING

COALITION OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, INC.

(School Readiness Funding)

Deliverables Completed

Successfully

3/3/2021 - 6/30/2021

Deliverables Completed

Successfully

3/3/2021 - 6/30/2021

$760,770 N/A

HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY SCHOOL READINESS

COALITION, INC. D/B/A EARLY LEARNING

COALITION OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, INC.

(School Readiness Funding)

Deliverables in Progress

7/1/2021 - 9/30/2021

Continue Funding

Deliverables in Progress

7/1/2021 - 9/30/2021
$35,000 N/A

HILLSBOROUGH EDUCATION FOUNDATION,
Continue FundingGood Standing$399,654 28INC.

(CB TECH - Learning at Home)

HISPANIC SERVICES COUNCIL, INC.

(La RED de Padres Activos / The Network of

Active Parents)

Continue FundingGood Standing$998,796 29

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TAMPA

(Housing Counseling Support Services)
Continue Funding

Newly Funded July 2021
$19,932 N/A Newly Funded July 2021

(Final Part II completed at end of Fiscal Year) 2



Children's Board of Hillsborough County

FY 2021 Provider Evaluations Preliminary Part II  - September 27, 2021

Preliminary Results -

September 2021

Initial Results -

August 2021
Agency/Program Funding Initial Score

27-30 Good Standing
22 - 26 May need improvement plan

< 22 Program of Concern

CHILDREN'S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH

COUNTY

PRELIMINARY PART II EVALUATION

2020 - 2021

Continue Funding with

Modifications and/or Provider

Improvement Plan

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF TAMPA

(Village Link Up) $187,345 May Need Improvement Plan22

LEARN TAMPA BAY, INC. D/B/A ACHIEVE
PLANT CITY

(Learning Is Fun Together - LIFT)

LIFECARE NETWORK, INC. D/B/A CHOICES
CLINICS

(LifeNet)

$197,966 Continue FundingGood Standing30

Continue Funding with
Modifications

$146,000 Good Standing27

LUTHERAN SERVICES FLORIDA, INC.

(Children's Board Family Resource Centers)
Continue Funding with

Modifications
$2,700,753 May Need Improvement Plan26

LUTHERAN SERVICES FLORIDA, INC.

(Community Collaboration for Strong Families) Contract Ending 9/30/2021$275,000 May Need Improvement Plan24

MENTAL HEALTH CARE, INC. D/B/A
GRACEPOINT WELLNESS Contract Ending 9/30/2021$449,912 Good Standing29

(Family Infant / Child Wellness)

METROPOLITAN MINISTRIES, INC. (Children's

Recreation, Education, Arts & Therapeutic

Experience ● CREATE)

Continue Funding$352,616 Good Standing29

METROPOLITAN MINISTRIES, INC. (Homeless

Family Early Intervention Program - First Hug) Continue Funding$1,354,373 Good Standing29

NONPROFIT LEADERSHIP CENTER OF TAMPA

BAY, INC. (Capacity Building: Training and

Consultation)

OASIS NETWORK of NEW TAMPA, INC.

Back to Basics; School Clothing

Deliverables in Progress

Continue Funding
$172,375 N/A Deliverables in Progress

One-time Funding$18,066 N/A One-time Funding

PARENTS AND CHILDREN ADVANCE

Continue Funding$195,259 Good StandingTOGETHER (PCAT) LITERACY MINISTRIES

(South County Literacy Initiative)

POSITIVE SPIN, INC.,

(Empowering A Community with Hope - EACH

29

Continue Funding with
Modifications

$798,978 Good Standing27

One)
Continue Funding with

Modifications and/or Provider

Improvement Plan

PREGNANCY CARE CENTER OF PLANT CITY,

$182,722 May Need Improvement Plan26INC.

(Healthy Moms/Healthy Babies)
Continue Funding with

Modifications
PRESERVE VISION FLORIDA, INC.

(Children's Vision Health and Safety)

REACHUP, INC. (GROWTH with Doulas and

Dads - Giving Resource Opportunities with

$205,400 May Need Improvement Plan26

Continue Funding with
ModificationsGood Standing$913,246 29

Trust and Hope)

Continue Funding with

Modifications and/or Provider

Improvement Plan

REACHUP, INC. (Stronger with Involved

$215,297 Good StandingFocused Fathers) 27

Continue Funding with
Modifications

REBUILDING TOGETHER TAMPA BAY, INC.

(Safe and Healthy Homes for Families)
$377,880 Good Standing29

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF HILLSBOROUGH

COUNTY (Renaissance myON Reader)
$100,000 Access Agreement with SDHC Continue FundingN/A

Continue Funding with
Modifications

SENIORS IN SERVICE OF TAMPA BAY, INC.

(Readers in Motion)
Good Standing$353,059 30

(Final Port II completed at end of Fiscal Year) 3



Children's Board of Hillsborough County

FY 2021 Provider Evaluations Preliminary Part II  - September 27, 2021

Preliminary Results -

September 2021

Initial Results -

August 2021
Agency/Program Funding Initial Score

27-30 Good Standing
22 - 26 May need improvement plan

< 22 Program of Concern

CHILDREN'S BOARD OF HILLSBOROUGH

COUNTY

PRELIMINARY PART II EVALUATION

2020 ■ 2021

Continue Funding

Newly Funded July 2021
SOLITA'S HOUSE, INC. (Comprehensive

Housing Counseling Services)
Newly Funded July 2021$15,589 N/A

Continue Funding with
Modifications

SPRING OF TAMPA BAY, INC., THE

(Family Safety from Domestic Violence)

ST. JOSEPH'S HOSPITAL D/B/A ST. JOSEPH’S
WOMEN’S HOSPITAL

(Mobile Health and Safety Education Program)

$222,083 Good Standing29

Continue Funding with
Modifications$1,011,820 May Need Improvement Plan24

ST. JOSEPH'S HOSPITAL D/B/A ST. JOSEPH'S
WOMEN'S HOSPITAL

(Supporting Motherhood and More)

Continue Funding$118,305 Good Standing27

Continue Funding with
Modifications

SUCCESS 4 KIDS AND FAMILIES, INC.

(Successful Families)
Good Standing$395,744 28

TAMPA BAY COMMUNITY AND FAMILY

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION D/B/A

BETHESDA MINISTRIES (Children are Safe and

Supported)
TAMPA BAY NETWORK TO END HUNGER

(MOW4Kids)

Continue Funding with

Modifications and/or Provider

Improvement Plan

$178,925 Good Standing29

One-time FundingOne-time Funding$75,000 N/A

Deliverables in Progress

Continue Funding

TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH HOMELESS

INITIATIVE (UNITY Information Network)
$50,000 N/A Deliverables In Progress

TAMPA METROPOLITAN AREA YMCA, INC.

(Community Learning Center at Sulphur

Springs)

Continue Funding$295,610 Good Standing30

TAMPA METROPOLITAN AREA YMCA, INC.

(Fit and Fun at the Y)
Continue Funding$119,252 Good Standing30

Pending Additional Information

Continue Funding
TAMPA METROPOLITAN AREA YMCA, INC.

(Mobile Swim and Education)
Pending Additional Information$238,733 N/A

UNIVERSITY AREA COMMUNITY

Continue FundingGood Standing$108,650 29DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, INC.

(Get Movingl Mind, Body Soul)
UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA BOARD OF

TRUSTEES, THE (Helping our Toddlers

Developing our Children's Skills - HOT DOCS

Developing our Children's Skills - DOCS K-5)

Continue FundingGood Standing$246,285 29

UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA BOARD OF

TRUSTEES, THE (Hillsborough HIPPY Parent

Involvement Project)

Continue FundingGood Standing$1,407,396 29

UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH FLORIDA BOARD OF

TRUSTEES, THE (Program-Wide Positive

Behavior Support)

Good Standing Continue Funding$745,166 29

70 Contracts

(Final Port II completed at end of Fiscal Year) 4



 
 
  

Good News  
  

  

  
  
  

 

from our funded partners 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
September I 2021 

  

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Big Sister Juanita and Little Sister Hailey have 

been matched in the Big Brothers Big Sisters 
program since November of 2020, but when 
around these two ladies you’d think they've 
known each other for years. The connection 
has been strong and positive for both the Big 

and the Little from the very beginning. A few 
months ago, Hailey's mother passed away, 
beginning a very difficult time for her and her 
family. Juanita was one of the first people 

that Hailey called to share the devastating 
news.  Hailey's father talks about how much 
of a help Juanita has been to Hailey, 
especially during that challenging time.  

 
Juanita and Hailey enjoy doing various activities together, including roller skating and 
swimming. One of their most memorable outings was when they went to Target and bought 

matching pink wigs to wear. They made music videos with their pink wigs, dancing to 
different songs and recording them for fun. Juanita and Hailey also spend time focusing on 
Hailey's academics. Juanita has encouraged Hailey to become a better reader and writer, 
even giving her a journal to write about her daily activities. Juanita also makes it a priority 

to talk to Hailey about social behaviors and respectful ways to handle confrontations, 
which has been an issue at times. This year Hailey advanced to the fifth grade and uses 
many of the skills that Juanita has taught her when dealing with new classmates. She has 
truly blossomed while being matched in the program, and we’re excited to see what great 

successes this dynamic duo will share in the future. 
   
 
 

 
 

    

 
 
 
 

 

Big Brother Big Sister of Tampa Bay 
 

1-to-1 Comprehensive Mentoring 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
Testimonial 

 
Hello, my name is Kennethya and I am so happy 

that I came to Positive Spin for assistance. I 
initially came to Positive Spin with some 
specific issues, but I received more help than I 
could have ever imagined. They taught me 

financial literacy, how to manage my money 
and how to have a stable home. They also 
provide my baby with a brand new crib and a 
high chair. Positive Spin helped me get my life 

back on track. They keep me motivated to do 
better. With them on my side, I feel like I can do 
anything. 
 

Kennethya B. 
 

Positive Spin 
 

Empowering a Community with Hope (E.A.C.H. One) 
 



 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Children’s Board Mobile Swim Team was in full 
force this summer, restructuring its community-based 
group lessons while continuing to bring the innovative 
water safety program to local neighborhoods at no 

cost. 
 
This water safety program is generously funded by the 

Children’s Board of Hillsborough County. The Mobile 
Water Safety Team “Be Water Smart from the Start” 
initiative brings water safety and swim lessons to 
apartment communities and neighborhood HOA pools 

for children, three and fourtheen years old, located 
within Hillsborough County. 
 
“Our biggest win this past year was combating COVID-

19 and still being able to expand our services. We 
served new communities and they each welcomed us 

warmly. With new marketing strategies in place, we were able to locate new complexes and 
find areas in the county that needed our services. We believe every child deserves to know 

how to swim, we just want to find the areas in town whereparents and caregivers do not 
always have access to swim lessons. We use our mobile swim team to bring lessons to them 
as a service and a reassurance to the parents that their children are safe in and around a 
body of water,” says Director of Mobile Swim, Erin Gramm. “We faced new hardships with 

COVID, just as other organizations did, but this did not slow us down.”  
 
During the summer, mobile swim lessons are offered in 45-minute classes during either the 
morning or afternoon, Monday-Friday, for one week. When school is in session, lessons are 

offered three times a week for two weeks in the evening.  
 
Hillsborough County properties interested in offering the program may contact 

mobileswim@tampaymca.org for more information and next steps. Families interested in 
bringing the program to their property, must first contact their property management team 
and share their interests. The property manager can then reach out to the program contact 
listed above for more information. The Y hopes to continue adding new properties into our 

new year as well as additional class times in the spring and fall. 
 
(continues on next page) 

Tampa Metropolitan Area YMCA 
 

Children’s Board Mobile Swim Lessons 
 



  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Erin says a new community DG Farms in Wimauma personally contacted the Y.  

“They reached out to us and spread our message within their community. We had full 
registrations before day one. Parents were supportive and loved to see our instructors and 
lifeguards at their community pools,” she says. 
 

Parents that had children enrolled in the program sent thank you emails at the end of the 
week, as stated by one participant: “Erin, Thank you so much for the swimming lessons. 
Pablo gained a lot of confidence and, just like you, he wanted to be in the water.”  

The Mobile Water Safety Team also provides a session of five private swim lessons to 
children with special needs, ages three to fourtheen, at no cost. This program is offered at 
any Tampa YMCA or Brandon Sports and Aquatic Center (BSAC) location nearest you. 
Nationally certified swim instructors will provide 30-minute private swim lessons tailored 

to each child to encourage them to be safer around water. Before the start of the first 
lesson, parents and caregivers should plan to complete a “Swim Lesson Readiness” phone 
call to ensure you and your child are fully informed of what this program offers.  
Families interested in this private swim lesson opportunity should contact 

mobileswim@tampaymca.org. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Tampa Metropolitan Area YMCA 
 

Children’s Board Mobile Swim Lessons 
 

mailto:mobileswim@tampaymca.org


 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Healthy Families Hillsborough (HFH) recognizes 
the importance of including fathers and father 
figures in the services we provide to our families. 

HFH has convened a Fatherhood Initiative 
Workgroup whose mission is to increase father 
engagement in-home visits, parent support 
groups, and other activities. The group will 

review father-friendly curriculum to share with 
staff, father-focused contests on social media, and 
father-specific topics and ideas for parent groups 
like the one shown below. 

Healthy Start Coalition of Hillsborough 
County 

 

Healthy Families Hillsborough 
 



 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

This summer was filled with amazing programs 
and field trips that empowered the members of 
the Boys & Girls Clubs' After Zone program.  
The six-week summer program featured 

programs like Money Matter (focuses on how to 
manage and understand money), Career Launch 
(focuses on teaching members to understand 
their career path options), Triple Play (focuses 

on nutrition and sports that keep members 
active), Cosmology, and multiple field trips.   
 
Field trips included MOSI where the members 

participated in a major team-building activity called the “Rope Course”. This activity 
challenged members to use ropes and safety equipment to help the members scale heights 
and obstacles with the support of staff and their teammates. This activity helps build 
confidence in themselves and their peers.  

 
JA Biz Town was another field trip. Members spent the weeks before the field trip studying 
and applying for a job that they then had to role play on the day of the field trip. The jobs 
were from real companies; Bay News 9, Bank of America, Busch Gardens, and more. All 

companies had to work together and it served as an eye-opening experience on how a 
normal workday is and helped the members understand what it may feel like to work at 
these companies.  

 
Sunwest Park was another fun team-building field trip. 
A man-made lake with an inflatable floating obstacle 
course was the ultimate team-building challenge for the 

members. Completing the obstacle course required 
each member to help the next member to get past each 
obstacle.  
 
 

Boys & Girls Clubs of Tampa Bay 
 

After-Zone Middle School Initiative 
 



 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Here are highlights from the Life Choices program 
at Marshall Middle School in Plant City. The 
program was held in May 2021 for two weeks. We 

divided our curriculum into 50-minute segments 
and offered it during one of their class periods so 
that it did not disrupt their school day. Because of 
your partnership, we were able to go into the 

school and teach puberty, sexual health, healthy 
relationships, Shaken Baby Syndrome, as well as, 
allow 18 young men (eighth graders) to take a 
programmed baby home for the weekend. Their 

experience was priceless, and we hope to share 
some of those details in the future. They all took 
valuable life lessons out of the class, ending our 
time together with a letter they wrote to their 
“future self”. This group of young men is our true 

target population for this program, and it was 
fantastic to see them so engaged! 

  

 
  

St. Joseph’s Children’s Hospital 
 

Mobile Health and Safety Education 
 



 

                              Outreach Events Calendar 

The Children’s Board will have a presence at the following community events. Contact Dexter 

Lewis, Director of Public Relations, at lewisbd@childrensboard.org for more information about a 

particular event. 

 

September  
 

09.24.21           Baby Safety Month – Prevent Needless Deaths Table  

                            Doretha Wynn Edgecomb Children’s Board Family Resource Center – Temple Terrace 

                            5892 East Fowler Avenue, Temple Terrace 

                            10:00 am-1:00 pm 

 

 

 

09.25.21           Glazer Children’s Museum – 11th Annual Birthday Bash 

                            Curtis Hixon Waterfront Park 

                            600 North Ashley Drive, Tampa 

                            10:00 am-4:00 pm 

 

09.26.21           Tampa Bay Moms Group - Family Fun Fest 

                            Water Works Park 

                            1710 North Highland Avenue, Tampa 

                            11:00 am-3:00 pm 

 

09.29.21           Baby Safety Month – Prevent Needless Deaths Table  

                            Children’s Board Family Resource Center – Plant City 

                            301 North Palmer Street, Plant City 

                            10:30 am-12:30 pm 

 

                       

 

October  
                              

10.02.21           13th Annual YES! F.A.I.R.  

                            All People’s Life Center  

                            6105 East Sligh Avenue, Tampa 

                            10:00 am-3:00 pm 

 

 

 

mailto:lewisbd@childrensboard.org


10.05.21            Children’s Board Free Tuesday  

                             Glazer Children’s Museum  

                             110 West Gasparilla Plaza, Tampa 

                             10:00 am-5:00 pm 

 

10.05.21            Tampa Night Out – Tampa Police Department 

                             Macfarlane Park  

                             1700 North MacDill Avenue, Tampa 

                             5:30 pm-7:30 pm 

 

10.06.21            Tampa Night Out – Tampa Police Department  

                             Rowlett Park  

                             2401 East Yukon Street, Tampa 

                             5:30 pm-7:30 pm 

 

10.07.21            Tampa Night Out – Tampa Police Department 

                             Perry Harvey Park  

                             1000 East Harrison Street, Tampa 

                             5:30 pm-7:30 pm 

 


	Action Item 7 - Contract Hills County BOCC DV Funds Attachment B.pdf
	ADMINISTRATIVE RENEWAL
	County Administrator’s Office:
	Approved: ____________________________________  Date: ___________________

	Complete August 2021 Financial Statements.pdf
	August 2021 Financial Statements
	New Prog Fund Detail


	AGENDA: 


